Pathophysiology Concepts of Human Disease

Matthew Sorenson Laurie Quinn Diane Klein

Brief Contents

Unit I: Foundations of Pathophysiology

Chapter 1: Introduction to the Basics of Pathophysiology	4
Chapter 2: Genetics, Genomics, and Epigenomics	22
Chapter 3: Environmental Health Influences on Disease and Injury	47
Chapter 4: Stress and Adaptation	77

Unit II: Risks Underlying the Leading Causes of Morbidity and Mortality

Chapter 5: Health Risks of Obesity and	
Physical Inactivity	100
Chapter 6: Risks Related to Substance Use	
Disorders	121

Chapter 7: Risks Related to Sleep Alterations 145

Unit III: Fluid, Electrolyte, and Acid-Base Imbalances 168

Chapter 8: Fluid and Electrolyte Imbalances	170
Chapter 9: Acid–Base Imbalances	197

Unit IV: Cell Injury, Inflammation, and Alterations of Cell Growth and Regulation 236

Chapter 10: Mechanisms of Cell Injury	
and Aging	238
Chapter 11: Inflammation	271
Chapter 12: Neoplasia	294

Unit V: Infection and Disorders of Immunity 324

Chapter 13: Mechanisms of Infection and Host Protection	326
Chapter 14: Hypersensitivity and Autoimmune Disorders	363
Chapter 15: Immunodeficiency Disorders	381
Chapter 16: Disorders of White Blood Cells	400

Unit VI: Disorders of Oxygenation

2

98

Chapter 17: Restrictive Lung Disorders	424
Chapter 18: Obstructive Lung Disorders	440
Chapter 19: Neoplastic, Infectious, and Pulmonary Vascular Lung Disorders	465
Chapter 20: Respiratory Failure	494
Chapter 21: Disorders of Oxygen Transport	513

422

Unit VII: Disorders of

Perfusion	532
Chapter 22: Alterations of Hemostasis	534
Chapter 23: Vascular Disorders	552
Chapter 24: Coronary Circulation Disorders	572
Chapter 25: Cardiac Structural Disorders	612
Chapter 26: Heart Failure	637
Chapter 27: Disorders of Circulation within the CNS	660
Chapter 28: Shock and Multiple Organ Dysfunction Syndrome	680
_ ,	

Unit VIII: Disorders of Mood
and Cognition 700
Chapter 29: Emotional Regulation and Mood 702
Chapter 30: Neurocognitive and
Neurodevelopmental Disorders 730
Unit IX: Disorders of Sensory
Perception and
Thermoregulation 748
Chapter 31: Disorders of Hearing, Balance,
and Vision 750
Chapter 32: Pain, Neuropathy, and Headache 778
Chapter 33: Disorders of Thermoregulation 815
Unit X: Disorders of Mobility 840
Chapter 34: Disorders Affecting Motor
Function 842
Chapter 35: Acute Musculoskeletal
Disorders 863
Chapter 36: Chronic Musculoskeletal
Disorders 883
Unit XI: Disorders of Endocrine
Description 000
Regulation 902
Chapter 37: Diabetes Mellitus and Its
Complications 904

Chapter 38: Thyroid, Parathyroid, and Adrenal Disorders

Unit XII: Altered Tissue Integrity

Integrity	952
Chapter 39: Tissue and Wound Healing	954
Chapter 40: Acute Skin Disorders	982
Chapter 41: Chronic Skin Disorders	1011

933

Unit XIII: Disorders of Digestion, Metabolism, and Elimination 1040 Chapter 42: Disorders of the Upper and Lower Gastrointestinal System 1042 **Chapter 43: Disorders of the Exocrine** Pancreatic and Hepatobiliary Systems 1070 **Chapter 44: Liver Failure** 1096 Chapter 45: Disorders of Kidney and **Urinary Tract Function** 1115 Chapter 46: Acute Kidney Injury and **Chronic Kidney Disease** 1135

Unit XIV: Disorders of Sexuality and Reproduction 1160

Chapter 47: Disorders of the Female Reproductive System	
Chapter 48: Disorders of the Male	1197
Chapter 49: Sexually Transmitted Infections	1192

Unit XV: Trauma and
Multisystem Conditions1220Chapter 50: Mechanisms of Traumatic

Injury	1222
Chapter 51: The Pathophysiology of Primary and Secondary Traumatic Injury	1244
Chapter 52: Biologic, Chemical, and Radiologic Agents of Disease	1271
Chapter 53: Pathophysiology at the End of Life	1291

This page intentionally left blank

Pathophysiology Concepts of Human Disease

Matthew Sorenson, PhD, APN, ANP-C

Director, School of Nursing Associate Professor, Nursing DePaul University College of Science and Health Chicago, Illinois

Laurie Quinn, PhD, RN, FAAN, FAHA, CDE

Clinical Professor, College of Nursing Biobehavioral Health Science University of Illinois at Chicago Chicago, Illinois

Diane Klein, PhD, RN

Associate Professor, Nursing Marcella Niehoff School of Nursing Loyola University Chicago, Illinois



330 Hudson Street, NY NY 10013

Vice President, Health Science and TED: Julie Levin Alexander Director of Portfolio Management: Katrin Beacom Executive Portfolio Manager: Pamela Fuller Development Editor: Laura S. Horowitz, York Content Development Portfolio Management Assistant: Erin Sullivan Vice President, Content Production and Digital Studio: Paul DeLuca Managing Producer, Health Science: Melissa Bashe Content Producer: Bianca Sepulveda Project Monitor: Sue Hannahs Operations Specialist: Maura Zaldivar-Garcia Creative Director: Blair Brown Creative Digital Lead: Mary Siener Managing Producer, Digital Studio, Health Science: Amy Peltier Digital Studio Producer, REVEL and e-text 2.0: Ellen Viganola Digital Content Team Lead: Brian Prybella Digital Content Project Lead: William Johnson Vice President, Field Marketing: David Gesell Executive Product Marketing Manager: Christopher Barry Sr. Field Marketing Manager: Brittany Hammond Full-Service Project Management and Composition: SPi Global Project Manager: Thomas Russell Inventory Manager: Vatche Demirdjian Interior Design: Studio Montage Cover Design: Studio Montage Printer/Binder: LSC Communications, Inc. Cover Printer: Phoenix Color/Hagerstown

Copyright © **2019 by Pearson Education, Inc. All rights reserved.** Manufactured in the United States of America. This publication is protected by Copyright, and permission should be obtained from the publisher prior to any prohibited reproduction, storage in a retrieval system, or transmission in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or likewise. To obtain Permission(s) to use material from this work, please submit a written request to Pearson Education, Inc., Permissions Department, 221 River Street, Hoboken, New Jersey 07030.

Many of the designations by manufactures and sellers to distinguish their products are claimed as trademarks. Where those designations appear in this book, and the publisher was aware of a trademark claim, the designations have been printed in initial caps or all caps.

Library of Congress Cataloging-in-Publication Data

Names: Sorenson, Matthew, author. | Quinn, Laurie, author. | Klein, Diane, 1947-2017, author.

Title: Pathophysiology : concepts of human disease / Matthew Sorenson, Laurie Quinn, Diane Klein.

Description: Hoboken, New Jersey : Pearson Education, 2017. | Includes bibliographical references and index.

Identifiers: LCCN 2017055102 | ISBN 9780133414783 | ISBN 0133414787

Subjects: | MESH: Disease | Pathologic Processes-physiopathology | Nurses' Instruction

Classification: LCC RB127 | NLM QZ 140 | DDC 616/.047--dc23

LC record available at https://lccn.loc.gov/2017055102



About the Authors

Matthew Sorenson, PhD, APN, ANP-C

The pre-nursing career of Matthew Sorenson includes experience as a recovery room orderly, paramedic, and child care worker and an initial collegiate major in history. His nursing career began with a BSN degree from Northern Illinois University (with a minor in history). After graduation, he worked primarily in physical rehabilitation, focusing on neurologic conditions and injury, an area in which he remains active. He holds an MS in Applied Family and Child Studies (Focus on Abuse and Neglect) and an MS in Nursing (Community Health Focus).

His doctorate is from Loyola University Chicago, where he studied stress-related changes in immunologic function in those with multiple sclerosis. Postdoctoral education includes a three-year fellowship with the neurology service at Edward Hines Jr. VA Hospital (focus on multiple sclerosis) and a year-long fellowship in Disability Ethics through the Rehabilitation Institute of Chicago. He is an Adult Nurse Practitioner. His time as a nurse practitioner is spent primarily with street outreach programs targeting the homeless and working poor. His research focuses on immunologic correlates of fatigue, particularly in those with multiple sclerosis. He is currently funded to investigate viral epigenetics in multiple sclerosis. He teaches physical assessment, pharmacology, medicalsurgical nursing, and pathophysiology. Academically, Dr. Sorenson teaches at DePaul University with an additional appointment in the School of Medicine (Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation) at Northwestern University. He served as a program director for several years and was recently named Director of the School of Nursing.

To my grandmother, Gertrude, for her inspiration. To my parents, Robert and Joyce, for their encouragement and support. Janet, your love and support was and always will be the cornerstone of my life.

Laurie Quinn, PhD, RN, FAAN, FAHA, CDE

Laurie Quinn is a Clinical Professor in the Department of Biobehavioral Health Science in the College of Nursing at the University of Illinois at Chicago (UIC). Dr. Quinn earned her PhD from UIC in Nursing Science and has been on the UIC College of Nursing faculty for 20 years. Her primary research focus is the study of metabolic alterations associated with diabetes mellitus, especially their role in the development of cardiovascular disease. Her research has focused on examining the effect of aerobic exercise on the metabolic derangements of both type 1 and type 2 diabetes. She is currently part of an interdisciplinary team from University of Chicago, Illinois Institute of Technology, and UIC that is developing an artificial pancreas.

Dr. Quinn is a Certified Diabetes Educator and worked as a Clinical Nurse Specialist at Rush University Medical Center. She has received several awards for teaching excellence and has lectured in graduate and undergraduate physiology, pathophysiology, and pharmacology classes. She has published and presented extensively in research and clinical practice venues on diabetes-related topics.

Dr. Quinn is an active member of the American Diabetes Association and American Heart Association. She has been a healthcare coordinator at an American Diabetes Association summer camp for children with diabetes for several years. In this role, she has cared for numerous children with type 1 diabetes and helped to educate clinical staff and students from various healthcare specialties on the treatment of type 1 diabetes.

To my parents Lauretta and Thomas Quinn and sister Margaret Quinn for all of their support throughout the years.

Diane Klein, PhD, RN

Diane Klein earned a BSN degree from Loyola University Chicago and then worked as a nurse in the trauma unit and later in a medical unit at Cook County Hospital. During her clinical practice, she became interested in research, which led her to earn a PhD in physiology from the University of Illinois at the Medical Center Campus in Chicago. Her dissertation research focused on intracellular signaling systems in cancer cell growth. Her research interests as a faculty member at Loyola University Chicago included the role of cyclic nucleotides in altered lung metabolism during septic shock, myocardial metabolism and function during septic shock, effects of chronic ethanol intake on metabolic alterations during sepsis, and the use of nebulized morphine in the treatment of dyspnea.

Dr. Klein was an Associate Professor in the School of Nursing at Loyola University Chicago, where she taught undergraduate and graduate pathophysiology courses for over 30 years. She believed that nursing students require a strong foundation in pathophysiology because it is the basis for their understanding of pharmacology and the rationale for clinical assessments and interventions. In addition to pathophysiology courses, Dr. Klein taught undergraduate adult health clinical courses, undergraduate and graduate pharmacology, advanced physiology for clinical practice, and stress in health and illness.

In addition to teaching pathophysiology courses, Dr. Klein presented topics related to pathophysiology at local and national meetings of both nursing and basic science organizations. Selected topics presented included resources for teaching genetics and genomics, problems of mechanically ventilated patients, biotrauma, the immune system and sepsis, fluid and electrolyte imbalances associated with trauma, effects of endotoxin and cyclic nucleotides on lung glucose oxidation, pathophysiology update for practicing nurses, and oxidative stress in critical illness and therapeutic strategies. Diane Klein passed away in July of 2017, just as this book, on which she had worked for almost 10 years, was going to press. This book would not have existed if not for Diane's interest and hard work. Matthew Sorenson, Laurie Quinn, and the staff at Pearson are grateful for Diane's contributions and commitment to this project.

Thank You

Our appreciation first and foremost goes to Pamela Fuller for believing in this project. Without the editorial skill and patience of Laura Horowitz, this project would not have seen final fruition. We would be remiss if we did not acknowledge the valuable work of the contributors who provided time, energy, and depth to this work. The feedback of the reviewers was also crucial in shaping this book. Finally, thanks go to the students in our classrooms whose energy, questions, and drive for knowledge provided the genesis of this project.

> Matthew Sorenson Laurie Quinn Diane Klein

Contributors

Michael P. Adams, PhD

Adjunct Professor of Biological Sciences Pasco-Hernando State College Hillsborough Community College Formerly Dean of Health Professions Pasco-Hernando State College New Port Richey, Florida

Omar AL-Rawajfah, PhD, RN

Dean, Faculty of Nursing AL AL-Bayt University Mafraq, Jordan

Kyle T. Bergan, DNP, MS, RN, EMT-B, CEN

Clinical Adjunct Faculty DePaul University Chicago, Illinois Staff Nurse, Emergency Department West Suburban Medical Center Oak Park, Illinois

Jean K. Berry, PhD, APN

Clinical Associate Professor Emerita University of Illinois College of Nursing, Department of Biobehavioral Health Science Chicago Illinois

Linda Blevins, DNP, MFA, ELS, RN Board-Certified Editor in the Life Sciences President, Charis Communications LLC Springboro, Ohio

Adam M. Boise, MS, APRN Concord Surgical Associates Concord Hospital Concord, New Hampshire

Neftali Cabezudo, PhD, RN-BC

VA Program Co-Director & Faculty, VANAP USF Nursing Education & Professional Development VA Northern California Health Care System Mather, California

Marcy Caplin, PhD, RN, CNE

RN/BSN & Graduate Nurse Educator Programs Kent State University Kent, Ohio

Margaret-Ann Carno, PhD, MBA, MJ, RN, CPNP,D, ABSM, FAAN

Professor of Clinical Nursing and Pediatrics School of Nursing University of Rochester Rochester, New York

Patricia Caudle, DNSc, CNM, FNP-BC

Associate Professor Frontier Nursing University Hyden, Kentucky

Will Chapleau, EMT-P, RN, TNS

Director of Performance Improvement American College of Surgeons Chicago, Illinois

Claire DeCristofaro, MD

Clinical Assistant Professor, DNP Program The Medical University of South Carolina Charleston, South Carolina

Suzanne DeYoung, MSN, DNP

Assistant Professor Greenville Technical College Greenville, South Carolina

Carolyn J. Driscoll, PhD RN FNP-C

Nurse Practitioner Hepatology Section Division of Gastroenterology, Hepatology, and Nutrition Virginia Commonwealth University Health System Richmond, Virginia

Hon-Vu Q. Duong, MD

Clinical Instructor of Ophthalmology Westfield Eye Center Las Vegas, Nevada Senior Lecturer of Neurosciences, Anatomy & Physiology Nevada State College Henderson, Nevada

Julie Eggert, PhD, GNP-BC, AGN-BC, AOCN, FAAN

Professor and Coordinator, Healthcare Genetics Doctoral Program Mary Cox Professor Clemson University Clemson, South Carolina

Jennifer S. Eisenstein, DNP, APRN, FNP-C Nurse Practitioner The Eisenstein Clinic Arlington Heights, Illinois

Mary Alice Estes, RN, MSN, CNE Instructor - Associate Degree Nursing Alvin Community College Alvin, Texas

Sarah Schwarz Farabi, PhD, RN Postdoctoral Fellow University of Colorado, School of Medicine Denver, Colorado

Katherina Fontanilla, DNP, RN Nursing Instructor College of Southern Nevada Henderson, Nevada

Sarah Gabua, DNP, RN, CNE Nursing Instructor Aspen University Denver, Colorado

Lisa Gaston, MSc, ACNP Manager, Clinical Nurse Consultant Celgene Melrose Park, Illinois

Matthew W. Gifford, OD Red Eye Eyewear Chicago, Illinois

Eileen D. Hacker, PhD Associate Professor Emerita of Biobehavioral Health Science University of Illinois at Chicago Chicago, Illinois

Rebecca Hernandez, MSN, APRN, FNP-BC Clinical Assistant Professor School of Nursing The University of Texas – Rio Grande Valley Edinburg, Texas

Jeanne B. Hewitt, PhD, RN Associate Professor, College of Nursing Director, Community Outreach and Engagement Core Children's Environmental Health Sciences Core Center University of Wisconsin Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Karen Hill, RN, BS, MN, PhD Associate Professor Southeastern Louisiana University Hammond, Louisiana

Barbara J. Holtzclaw, PhD, RN, FAAN Professor Associate Dean for Research Earl and Fran Ziegler College of Nursing University of Oklahoma Health Sciences Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Art Hsieh, MA, NRP

Emergency Care Program Santa Rosa Junior College Santa Rosa, California

Immaculata Igbo, PhD, MSc

Professor Pathophysiology & Pharmacology Prairie View A&M University – College of Nursing Houston, Texas

Linda Janusek, PhD, RN, FAAN Professor

Niehoff Endowed Chair for Research Department of Health Promotion Loyola University Chicago Maywood, Illinois

Rita W. Kaspar, PhD, RN, CNP Columbus, Ohio

Linda J. Keilman, DNP, GNP-BC, FAANP Associate Professor Gerontological Nurse Practitioner Michigan State University College of Nursing East Lansing, Michigan

Amy Mitchell Kennedy, MSN, RN Nursing Content Manager Newport News, Virginia

Vicki Keough, PhD, APRN-BC, ACNP, FAAN Dean and Professor Marcella Niehoff School of Nursing Loyola University Chicago Maywood, Illinois

Joanne Kouba, PhD, RDN Associate Professor Marcella Niehoff School of Nursing Loyola University Chicago Maywood, Illinois

Susan Krawczyk, CRNA, DNP NorthShore University Health System School of Nurse Anesthesia Park Ridge, Illinois

Bhuma Krishnamachari, PhD Assistant Dean of Research New York Institute of Technology College of Osteopathic Medicine Glen Head, New York

Christina M. Lattner, MSN Ed, ECRN, AGNP-C, ANP-BC, RN-BC Assistant Clinical Professor School of Nursing, College of Science and Health DePaul University Chicago, Illinois

Kathy Lauer, PhD, RN Assistant Professor College of Nursing Rush University Chicago, Illinois

MariJo Letizia, PhD, APN/ANP-BC, FAANP

Professor School of Nursing Loyola University Chicago Maywood, Illinois

Pamela F. Levin, PhD, APHN-BC Professor College of Nursing Rush University Chicago, Illinois

Laura Logan, MSN, RN, CCRN Clinical Instructor DeWitt School of Nursing Stephen F. Austin State University Nacogdoches, Texas

Shari J. Lynn, MSN, RN Faculty Department of Acute and Chronic Care Johns Hopkins School of Nursing Baltimore, Maryland

Dawna Martich, MSN, RN Nursing Education Consultant Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania

Herbert L. Mathews, PhD Department of Microbiology and Immunology Loyola University Chicago Maywood, Illinois

Patricia McCarthy, PhD

Professor Associate Chair & Program Director Department of Communication Disorders & Sciences Rush University Chicago, Illinois

Daniel R. Mead, MSN, RN

Student Nurse Practitioner- Internal Medicine/Geriatrics University of Cincinnati Charge Nurse-Telemetry Norwegian American Hospital Adjunct Faculty DePaul University Chicago, Illinois

Elizabeth Moxley, PhD, RN Assistant Professor School of Nursing DePaul University Chicago, Illinois

Cathy Marie Murks, RN, APN-NP Nurse Practitioner The University of Chicago Medicine Chicago, Illinois

Martha Olson, DNP, MSN Professor Iowa Lakes Community College Emmetsburg, Iowa

Cynthia Parkman, PhD, RN Faculty School of Health and Human Services -- Nursing National University San Diego, California Matthew Pastore, MS, LGC Genetic Counselor Lead Clinical Assistant Professor of Pediatrics Nationwide Children's Hospital Columbus, Ohio

Lynn Perkins, PhD, MSN, RN Nursing Faculty Minneapolis Community and Technical College Minneapolis, Minnesota

Tammy Poma, ANP-BC, CNN-NP Nephrology Nurse Practitioner University of Chicago Chicago, Illinois

Peter T. Pons, MD PHTLS Associate Medical Director Brighton, Colorado

Jori Reigle, MS, RN Lecturer/Adjunct Clinical Instructor School of Nursing University of Michigan Flint, Michigan

Judith L. Reishtein, PhD, MS, RN Course Facilitator College of New Rochelle The State University of New Jersey New Rochelle, New Jersey

Bernadette T. Roche, APN, CRNA, EdD Adjunct Associate Professor School of Nursing DePaul University Chicago, Illinois

Laura Robbins-Frank, MSN, RNC, APN Instructor Marcella Niehoff School of Nursing Loyola University Chicago Chicago, Illinois

Kathryn Wirtz Rugen, PhD, FNP-BC, FAANP

National Nurse Practitioner Consultant, Centers of Excellence in Primary Care Education Veterans Health Administration Clinical Associate Professor University of Illinois at Chicago Chicago, Illinois

Karen L. Saban, PhD, RN, APRN, CNRN, FAHA Associate Professor Associate Dean for Research Loyola University Chicago Maywood, Illinois

Deborah Saber, PhD, RN, CCRN-K Assistant Professor School of Nursing The University of Maine Orono, Maine

Jessica Simmons, MSN, APN, FNP-C, CWON, DNC Nurse Practitioner - Internal Medicine Mercy Health Rockford, Illinois

Marsha Snyder, PHD, PMHNP/CNS, BC, CADC Clinical Associate Professor

University of Illinois Chicago, Illinois

Angela Starkweather, PhD, RN, ACNP-BC, CNRN, FAAN

Director, Center for Advancement in Managing Pain Professor University of Connecticut

Storrs, Connecticut

Marcia Stout, DNP, APN, FNP-C, CWON, CHSE

Adjunct Assistant Professor College of Health Professions Rosalind Franklin University of Medicine and Science North Chicago, Illinois

Amy K. Winston, AuD Clinical Audiologist Assistant Professor Department of Communication Disorders and Sciences Rush University Medical Center Chicago, Illinois

Reviewers

Jean K. Berry, PhD, APN

Clinical Associate Professor Emerita College of Nursing, Department of Biobehavioral Health Science University of Illinois Chicago, Illinois

Sophia Beydoun, MSN, RN Nursing Faculty Henry Ford College Dearborn, Michigan

Theresa Capriotti, DO, MSN, CRNP

Clinical Associate Professor Villanova University Villanova, Pennsylvania

Hilary Carlson, RN, CPNP

Adjunct Clinical Instructor School of Nursing Columbia University New York, New York

Margaret-Ann Carno, PhD, MBA, MJ, D, CPNP, ABSM, FAAN

Professor of Clinical Nursing and Pediatrics School of Nursing University of Rochester Rochester, New York

Lori Ciafardoni, MSN/ED, RN

Assistant Professor State University of New York Delhi, New York

Anne Clayton, MS

Instructor College of Nursing Michigan State University East Lansing, Michigan

Barbara E. Connell, RN, MSN

Program Director Southwestern Community College Sylva, North Carolina

Ann Crawford, PhD, RN, CNS, CEN, CPEN Professor, College of Nursing

University of Mary Hardin-Baylor Belton, Texas

Diane Daddario, DNP, ANP-C, ACNS-BC, RN-BC, CMSRN Nursing Faculty

Pennsylvania State University University Park, Pennsylvania

Jean E. DeMartinis, PhD, FNP-BC

Associate Professor, College of Nursing University of Massachusetts Amherst, Massachusetts

Fernande E. Deno, MSN, RN, CNE

Nursing Instructor Anoka-Ramsey Community College Coon Rapids, Minnesota

David J. Derrico, RN, MSN, CNE

Clinical Assistant Professor College of Nursing University of Florida Gainesville, Florida

Kirsty Digger, DNS, RN, CEN

Associate Professor School of Nursing State University of New York Delhi, New York

Julie B. Doyle, EdD, RN

Faculty Geisinger Lewistown Hospital School of Nursing Lewistown, Pennsylvania

Tonya Eddy, PhD, RN

Assistant Professor University of Central Missouri Warrensburg, Missouri

Abimbola Farinde, PharmD, PhD

Professor Columbia Southern University Orange Beach, Alabama

Rebecca A. Fountain, PhD, RN

Assistant Professor University of Texas Tyler, Texas

Karla Hanson, MS, RN

Instructor College of Nursing South Dakota State University Sioux Falls, South Dakota

Pamela G. Harrison, EdD, RN, CNE Professor Indiana Wesleyan University Marion, Indiana **Patty Hawley, MSED** Instructor Ferris State University Big Rapids, Michigan

Deborah Henry, PhD(c), RN Director of Nursing Blue Ridge Community College Flat Rock, North Carolina

Barbara J. Holtzclaw, PhD, RN, FAAN

Professor / Associate Dean for Research University of Oklahoma Health Sciences Center Earl and Fran Ziegler College of Nursing Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Arthur Hsieh, MA, NRP

Paramedic Program Director Santa Rosa Junior College Windsor, California

Immaculata Ngozi Igbo, PhD, MSc, BSc Professor College of Nursing Prairie View A&M University

Houston, Texas Linda J. Keilman, DNP, GNP-BC, FAANP

Associate Professor, College of Nursing Michigan State University East Lansing, Michigan

Christine Kleckner, MA, MAN, RN Nursing Instructor Minneapolis Community and Technical College Minneapolis, Minnesota

Barbara Lane, MSN, RN-BC

Program Coordinator School of Nursing Lincoln University Fort Leonard Wood, Missouri

Claire M. Leonard, PhD

Professor, Biology Pre-Professional Advisor College Science & Health William Paterson University Wayne, New Jersey

Laura Logan, MSN, RN, CCRN

Clinical Instructor, DeWitt School of Nursing Stephen F. Austin State University Nacogdoches, Texas

Terrence Miller, PhD, BS Biology Instructor Central Carolina Community College Sanford, North Carolina

Jeremy Morse, PhD, ARNP, ANP-C

Director of Institutional Support & Donor Relations Palm Beach Atlantic University West Palm Beach, Florida

Janet Pinkelman, MSN, RNC-MNN

Professor of Nursing Owens Community College Toledo, Ohio

Colleen M. Quinn, EdD, MSN, RN

Professor Broward College Pembroke Pines, Florida

Christine Recktenwald, MSN, RN

Assistant Teaching Professor University of Missouri St. Louis, Missouri

Jori Anne Reigle, BA, MS, RN

Lecturer/Adjunct Clinical Instructor School of Nursing University of Michigan Flint, Michigan

Tara Rich, RN, MSN

Department Head ADN/PN Program Director James Sprunt Community College Kenansville, North Carolina

Carol Rizer, CRNA, DNP

Assistant Professor The University of Texas Tyler, Texas

Janet Czermak Russell, DNP, APN-BC

Associate Professor of Nursing Essex County College Newark, New Jersey

Leighsa Sharoff, EdD, RN, PMHNP/CNS, AHN-BC Associate Professor Simulation Coordinator Hunter College, City University of New York New York, New York

Angela Starkweather, PhD, RN, ACNP-BC, CNRN, FAAN

Director, Center for Advancement in Managing Pain Professor University of Connecticut Storrs, Connecticut

Monica L. Tenhunen, DNP, RN, GNP-BC, ANP-C Assistant Professor Department of Nursing Texas A&M University Commerce, Texas

Kimberly Valich, MSN, RN

Assistant Professor Medical Surgical III Course Coordinator Department of Nursing University of Saint Francis Crown Point, Indiana

Preface

Why We Wrote This Text

One of the challenges of teaching pathophysiology is helping students understand the underlying concepts behind the details. This book started with conversations on how best to facilitate student understanding. We chose to create this book as a way of fostering student learning and clinical application.

The goals of Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease are not only to provide students with the latest information about pathophysiology that is relevant to clinical practice, but also to empower students with competencies that will endure throughout their nursing career. The approach we have taken to pathophysiology reflects the shift in focus of healthcare from mainly understanding diseases in their later stages to understanding risk factors and interventions that can maintain good health and slow progression of disease in humans. For example, obesity, lack of regular physical activity, and tobacco use are risk factors for many common diseases such as diabetes mellitus, hypertension, atherosclerosis, cancer, and asthma. Therefore, we address risk behaviors that underlie leading causes of morbidity and mortality. The focus of this book will enhance students' understanding of disease processes and their ability to explain and motivate patients in their care to make therapeutic lifestyle changes.

Because of the rapid expansion of knowledge related to pathophysiology and the content saturation experienced by students in pathophysiology courses as well as other nursing courses, the concept-based approach for organization of content is used *Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease*. This will help students to understand the elements common to many disease states. An explanation of the major physiologic concept addressed in each chapter and a list of related concepts are provided in the Chapter Overview of each chapter. The concepts we have used include the following:

Acid–Base Balance Addiction Cellular Regulation Cognition Comfort and Pain Elimination Energy Balance Environment Fluid and Electrolyte Balance Hemostasis Immunity Infection Inflammation and Oxidative Stress Intracranial Regulation Metabolism Mobility Mood and Affect Nutrition and Digestion Oxygenation Perfusion Reproduction Sensory Perception Sexuality Stress and Coping Thermoregulation Tissue Integrity Trauma

The most extensive coverage for each concept addressed is given to conditions, risk factors, and behaviors underlying the leading causes of morbidity and mortality. This ensures that the most prevalent disorders are given the most coverage. Identification of the conditions emphasized in the book is based on the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's National Center for Health Statistics (http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/index.htm) and the national healthcare agenda as described in *Healthy People* 2020, published by the National Institutes of Health (NIH). According to the NIH, "The leading health indicators reflect the major health concerns in the U.S. at the beginning of the 21st century. The leading health indicators were selected based on their importance as public health issues." Chapter content related to *Healthy People 2020* focus areas is highlighted in special boxes. Summary tables are used to cover less common conditions.

The Cover

Starting with the cover, we emphasize the major focus of this text: human beings. Pathophysiology does not occur in a vacuum. Diseases, disorders, and syndromes occur in people—in individuals—and happen to neonates and infants, to children and adolescents, to men and women, to older adults. We call them "patients," but they are people first: parents, workers, students, lovers, siblings. The people shown on the cover appear as patients in case studies in the text.

Connor Whelan

Connor Whelan is the infant son of parents who are delighted to welcome him to the world. Connor has Down syndrome and a congenital heart defect. You will meet Connor in Chapter 25, "Cardiac Structural Disorders."



Angela Wang

Jennifer Yang hears from her daughter's school that Angela should be tested for cognitive difficulties. The tests reveal possible toxins. You will meet Jennifer and Angela in Chapter 3, "Environmental Influences on Disease and Injury."



Matthew Horn

Matthew Horn visits his healthcare provider for an annual checkup and complains that his right hand shakes when he's just sitting around or watching TV. The shaking seems to disappear when he's actively using his hand. That, along with other

symptoms, leads to a suspicion of Parkinson disease. You will meet Matthew in Chapter 34, "Disorders Affecting Motor Function."



Irene Rollins

Irene Rollins, age 67, has ovarian cancer and is near the end of her life. You will meet Irene in Chapter 53, "Pathophysiology at the End of Life."



The background image on the cover depicts a strain of the influenza virus. Influenza is a contagious respiratory illness that can be mild, moderate, or deadly. Every year in the United States, millions of people are infected with an influenza virus, hundreds of thousands are hospitalized, and tens of thousands die.



The individuals featured on our cover highlight another important aspect of *Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease:* We cover the lifespan from birth to death. Information specific to infants and children, pregnant women, and older adults is highlighted with icons to draw attention to these specific populations.



Unit Structure

Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease comprises 53 chapters divided into 15 units. The first four units provide in-depth coverage of pathophysiologic mechanisms; the rest of the units cover disorders, diseases, syndromes, and injuries grouped by concept. On each unit opener there is a visual that summarizes the content of the unit. These are great tools for students to review the unit.

Unit I: Foundations of Pathophysiology

Unit I introduces students to the foundational concepts and key components of the study of pathophysiology, including everything from terminology to genetics and the influence of the environment and stress on the human condition.

• Chapter 1: Introduction to the Basics of Pathophysiology introduces the readers to the basics of pathophysiology, including essential terminology, an overview of health and illness, the leading indicators of morbidity and mortality, and the importance of evidence-based practice. It also provides an overview of the structure of the chapters and features. With the Human Genome Project ushering in an era of genomics and proteomics, healthcare providers require increased understanding of the molecular biologic aspects of disease. This includes not only genetics, (e.g., inherited single-gene disorders), but also genomics, which involves the interactions among many genes in the human genome and the influence of environment and lifestyle on gene expression.

- Chapter 2: Genetics, Genomics, and Epigenomics addresses new knowledge and technologies related to genomics being used in molecular diagnostic and predisposition testing, as well as ways to increase customization of preventive strategies and treatment regimens for people with different phenotypes of many acute and chronic conditions.
- Chapter 3: Environmental Health Influences on Disease and Injury covers environmental influences on disease and injury. This topic is essential to pathophysiology but is rarely included in textbooks. The impact of the environment on the development of disease in humans is enormous. This chapter covers everything from environmental hazard classifications to the impact of the environment on assessing patients to the pathophysiologic mechanisms underlying alterations caused by environmental hazards.
- Chapter 4: Stress and Adaptation is another topic that is underrepresented in other pathophysiology texts. The effects of stress on physical and mental health are a key component of human disease, and we cover it in detail.

Unit II: Risks Underlying the Leading Causes of Morbidity and Mortality

Unit II stresses one of the major themes of *Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease:* health promotion and disease prevention. Each of the major risk categories underlying the leading causes of morbidity and mortality are covered in this unit. Again, most other pathophysiology texts devote little or no coverage to these important topics.

- Chapter 5: Health Risks of Obesity and Physical Inactivity
- Chapter 6: Risks Related to Substance Use Disorders
- Chapter 7: Risks Related to Sleep Alterations

Unit III: Fluid, Electrolyte, and Acid–Base Imbalances

Unit III covers the critical content of fluid and electrolyte balance and acid–base balance, both of which are key factors in maintaining health.

- Chapter 8: Fluid and Electrolyte Imbalances
- Chapter 9: Acid–Base Imbalances

Units IV: Cell Injury, Inflammation, and Alterations of Cell Growth and Regulation

Unit IV completes the foundational content by covering cell injury and aging, inflammation, and neoplasia.

- Chapter 10: Mechanisms of Cell Injury and Aging
- Chapter 11: Inflammation
- Chapter 12: Neoplasia

Units V through XIV

In Units V through XIV (Chapters 13 – 49), we cover the most prevalent disorders within each concept. We have endeavored to cover the essential "need to know" content and to keep "nice to know" material to a minimum in an effort to combat the content saturation students face. Each unit covers one or more concepts:

- Unit V: Infection and Disorders of Immunity
- Unit VI: Disorders of Oxygenation
- Unit VII: Disorders of Perfusion
- Unit VIII: Disorders of Mood and Cognition
- Unit IX: Disorders of Sensory Perception and Thermoregulation
- Unit X: Disorders of Mobility
- Unit XI: Disorders of Endocrine Regulation
- Unit XII: Altered Tissue Integrity
- Unit XIII: Disorders of Digestion, Metabolism, and Elimination
- Unit XIV: Disorders of Sexuality and Reproduction

Unit XV: Trauma and Multisystem Conditions

The last unit is unique to *Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease*. Trauma is a major cause of morbidity and mortality, but it is not covered in most other pathophysiology texts. And our last chapter covers a phenomenon that every patient and every nurse will experience. It is an important topic that is often overlooked, but we have covered it in detail.

- Chapter 50: Mechanisms of Traumatic Injury
- Chapter 51: The Pathophysiology of Primary and Secondary Traumatic Injury
- Chapter 52: Biologic, Chemical, and Radiologic Agents of Disease
- Chapter 53: Pathophysiology at the End of Life

Unique Content

Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease endeavors to cover all topics related to human disease and injury, including many that are rarely covered in pathophysiology textbooks. Our unique chapters include:

- Chapter 3: Environmental Health Influences on Disease and Injury
- Chapter 6: Risks Related to Substance Use Disorders
- Chapter 7: Risks Related to Sleep Alterations
- Chapter 29: Emotional Regulation and Mood
- Chapter 30: Neurocognitive and Neurodevelopmental Disorders
- Chapter 50: Mechanisms of Traumatic Injury
- Chapter 51: The Pathophysiology of Primary and Secondary Traumatic Injury
- Chapter 52: Biologic, Chemical, and Radiologic Agents of Disease
- Chapter 53: Pathophysiology at the End of Life.

In-Chapter Assessments

While developing this first edition of *Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease*, the authors – who are experienced classroom teachers – wanted to build in many opportunities for students to assess their understanding of the material as they are reading the content. Therefore, every chapter includes the following sets of questions:

- **Check Your Progress:** Found at the end of each numbered section, these questions are designed to assess students' understanding of the content.
- **Case Studies:** Each part of each case study ends with questions that cover the content in the section as well as the content of the case study.
- **Review Questions:** These are NCLEX-style questions found at the end of each chapter. They are written at the Understand, Apply, Analyze, and Evaluate levels of Bloom's taxonomy.

Answers to the Check Your Progress and Case Study questions are in the instructor resources for the print book and are pop-ups in the student eText. Answers for the Review Questions are in Appendix A in the print book and are given, along with rationales, as the student answers the questions in the eText.

Chapter Guide

The chapters in Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease have been developed in a consistent structure to facilitate learning. Readers will see the same basic format used throughout the book.



- 2. What are some of the major health problems associated with obesity? 3. What are the current trends in physical activity among U.S.
- adults and adolescents?

Your Progress box that features two or three open-ended questions about the content just presented.

Carrilyn Proust: Introduction

Carrilyn Proust, age 43, presents to her primary care provider's office complaining of a chronic, nonproductive cough and shortness of breath

call pointed a other and shortness of breath with even minor physical activities, such as climbing stairs. Ms. Proust was recently diagnosed with a viral upper respiratory tract infection, which was treated symptomatically. She suspects that her shortness of breath is secondary to her viral respiratory infection. She states that her primary concern is her chronic cough, which is preventing her from sleeping at night. She has been taking an over-the-counter cough suppressant, but she reports that this treatment is not effectively reducing her cough. She is afebrile and denies any recent history fever or chills. She reports that the has been 'coughing so hard that sometimes blood comes up." Nos. Proust has a 20 pack-year history of cigarette smoking. She began smoking at age 21 and quit smoking at age 41. She denies allogies to any medications or foods. Her vital signs are within normal limits.

Carrilyn Proust: Application

Ms. Proust's primary care provider orders a chest x-ray, which reveals a mass in the lower lobe of Ms. Proust's right lung. For thref revaluation, the primary care provider schedules Ms. Proust for a pulmonary computed tomography (CT) scan. In addition, a sputum sample is collected for analysis. Ms. Proust's sputum sample contains a moderate amount of blood. Ms. Proust's CT reveals an ahormal mass approximately 1 centimeter in diameter in the lower lobe of her right lung. Cytology of her sputum sample reveals suspected malignant cells: Ms. Proust is referred to an oncologist for further evaluation and treatment.



 What finding in Ms. Proust's history and physical examination suggests that Ms. Proust does not have small cell carcinoma?

Carrilyn Proust: Outcome

Ms. Proust's oncologist diagnoses her with stage 0 NSCLC—specifically, adenocarcinoma. Clinical staging reveals that the that malignancy appears to be confined to the 1-cm mass in her



right lower lung field. No lymph node involvement or metastasis is identified. Ms. Proust undergoes uncomplicated surgical excision of the tumor. Postoperative pathologic staging reveals no apparent lymph node involvement or cancer metastasis. However, because of Mrs. Proust's smoking history and subsequent increased risk for cancer recurrence, radiation and chemotherapy are added to hor treatment plan to help reduce her risk for cancer recurrence.

 Discuss the rationale for pathologic staging in Ms. Proust's treatment.

 Although Ms. Proust has a small tumor with no lymph node involvement or metastasis, explain the rationale for adding chemotherapy and radiation therapy to her surgical treatment.

Each **Case Study** appears multiple times in the chapter with an **Introduction**, one or more **Applications**, and an **Outcome** section. The patients featured in the case studies reflect the diversity of the population of the United States across all age groups.

Etiology and Pathogenesis

The primary cause of lung cancer is cigarette smoking, the result of the carcinogenic character of multiple chemica in cigarette smoke. The chemicals bind and mutate DN (see the feature on Genetics and Genomics for Clinice Practice).¹² There is a linear relationship between the inter

sity of smokin other cancers,

cancer.

Clinical Manifestations

Most patients with lung cancer do not seek medical car until they after they become symptomatic. The most com mon symptom is a persistent cough with or without spu tum production. Cough is not a specific symptom for lun cancers, and initially it is typically attributed to cigarett

n for lun cigarett commo streake

durana

Linking Pathophysiology to Diagnosis and Treatment Diagnostic tests for lung cancer include chest x-ray, computed tomography (CT), sputum cytology, and directly sampling cells from the tumor or pleural fluid. An abnormal chest x-ray often triggers the diagnostic workup for lung

 CT scan of the thorax is done to identify tumors larger than 1 cm in diameter and to better visualize tumors

Lifespan Considerations are highlighted with icons for children,

highlighted with icons for childred pregnant women, and older adults. Obesity in childhood and adoles public health problem associated long-term complications. Obese likely to have risk factors for cardiovase

diabetes, such as hyper resistance. Additionally at risk for musculoske

Obesity during pregnancy is a increased maternal and fetal risks. I cations include pregnancy-induce gestational diabetes, respiratory compli thromboembolism, preterm delivery, ces

In older adults, overweight and on the include congenerated with higher levels of function

Although obesity in older adults is asso adverse outcomes described in this chapt evidence that the risk of adverse outcomes

Each disorder that is covered has been chosen for its prevalence, i.e., the authors focused on the disorders that healthcare providers will see most often in clinical practice. For every disorder, the content is broken into three sections: **Etiology and Pathogenesis**, **Clinical Manifestations**, and **Linking Pathophysiology to Diagnosis and Treatment**.

CHAPTER SUMMARY Squamous cell carcinomas usually originate in medial bronchial mucosa at bronchial bifurcations and metas-tasize to adjacent lymph nodes and lung tissue. 19.1 Chapter Overview and Case Chapters end with a Chapter Summary Studies that gives a bulleted list of highlights for Describe the primary considerations and concepts related to pulmonary vascular, neoplastic, and infectious respira-tory disorders. Large cell carcinomas often present as big, bulky soli-tary tumors in the lung periphery. each numbered section/learning outcome. small cell carcinomas are aggressive, h and fast-growing tumors that metas . ive, highly malignant, wtastasize early and . C.v. Pulmonary disorders include alterations caused by neoplastic growths, infectious diseases, abscesses, and vascular disorders. widely. Symptoms initiating a diagnostic workup include obstruc-tive pneumonia, dyspnea with a pleural effusion, hemop-tysis, pain, hoarseness, or a paraneoplastic disorder. . Neoplastic growths may be malignant or benign. Malignant growths are composed of cancerous cells that are capable of metastasizing (spreading) from the site of origin to other body sites or invading local body sites and causing tissue destruction. Initial lung cancer symptoms are often nonspecific with a persistent cough that is attributed to another cause. Diagnostic tools include sputum cytologic analysis, CT scan of the thorax, bronchoscopy, fine needle aspira-tion, thoracentesis, and mediastinoscopy. sites and causing tissue destruction. Benign growths contain cells that are nonmalignant (noncancerous). Infectious diseases that serve as sources of pulmonary disorders include a variety of alterations that may affect either the upper respiratory tract, the lower respiratory tract, or both. 19.3 Benign Lung Lesions Differentiate the causes, classification, underlying patho-genesis, and clinical manifestations of benign lung lesions and approaches to diagnosis and treatment of these condi-tions across the lifespan. Pulmonary vascular disorders include alterations of blood flow within the lungs or to or from the pulmo-nary circuit. Fulmonary granulomas are formed to control an inhaled antigen that cannot be digested or in response to an autoimmune inflammatory process.
 Macrophages engulf the antigen, and helper T cells surround the macrophages, preventing a chronic inflammatory response.
 As macrophages die, the exposed antigen stimulates a further granulomatous inflammatory response.
 Tuberculosis is caused by the rod-shaped aerobic *M. tuberculosis* is bacillus, which is protected by a waxy capsule. Transmission is primarily through inhalation of infected droplets by a susceptible person.
 M. tuberculosis can remain latent and in a state of domancy for years; individuals with latent TB are not infectious.
 Active TB is symptomatic and communicable to other 19.2 Malignant Lung Cancer Differentiate the causes, classification, underlying patho-genesis, and clinical manifestations of malignant lung can-cers and approaches to diagnosis and treatment of these conditions across the lifespan. Cigarette smoking is the primary risk factor for lung cancer. There is a 15 to 20-year delay between starting smoking and development of lung cancer.
 Other smoke exposures (cigars, pipes, passive exposures) and exposures to environmental and occupational canrinogenes (radon or asbestos) also increase the risk for lung cancer.

 for lung cancer.
 M. tuberculosis can remain latent and in a state of dors, and diet contribute to lung cancer risk.

 e Histologically, carcinomas are classified as adenocarcinomas, all three of which are cognisidered non-snall cell
 Active TB is symptomatic and communicable to other individuals.

 e Granie Constraints and a state of dors.
 Reactivation of latent TB (secondare TB) occurs wher carcinomas) and small cell carcinomas.

 exactionation and small cell carcinomas.
 Reactivation of latent TB (secondare TB) occurs wher carcinomas) and small cell carcinomas.

 Active TB is symptomatic and communicable to other individuals. Adenocarcinoma and squame classified as differentiated (ret. 20 Chapter 5 Health Risks of Obesity and Physical In Review Questions are NCLEX-style to classified as differentiated (reta features, but cell division is un entiated (retaining enough fea but cell division is faster and fi You are placed in charge of an intervention for the stu-dents of a local elementary school. You know that a key factor for change in children's association with food is to address:

 the parents because they are all making incorrect food choices.

 c. he will have improved insulin sensitivity and thus improved beta-cell function.
 d. he will need to use more diabetic medication because give the students practice with the format. Adenocarcinomas are glandu the lung periphery. They grow tasize early because of invasic lymphatics. of the surgery. A new nurse is teaching a class at the local YMCA. The students are older adults from the community. The b. the food insecurity that these children experience because it affects their food choices. nurse's topic is the importance of weight management as the individuals age. Understanding of this material is noted by a student who says: a. "Weight gain will not affect my ability to care for c. the city parks and rec department because there are not enough state-of-the-art activities at the local YMCA myself d. None of the above, since you are just one person. "Weight loss will not help if I have joint pain. Mr. Xi is scheduled to undergo a Raus-en-Y gastric bypass. He wants to know what he should expect from the procedure. You explain that:
 a. he will not be restricted in his diet post procedure.
 b. he will be monitored for increased hepatic glucose production. "Weight east will affect my ability to do simple tasks, such as turning in bed, by myself."
 "Weight loss can increase my change of diabetes and its complications." Answers to Review Questions can be found in Appendix A. Answers to Check Your Progress and Case Study questions Answers to Review Questions can be found in Appendix A. Answers to Case Study and Check Your Progress questions are available on the faculty resources site. Please consult with your instructor. will be found online for the print book and will be pop-ups in the eText. **RECOMMENDED WEBSITES** Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: Childhood Overweight and Obesity https://www.cdc.gov/obesity/childhood/index.html BEFERENCES U.S. Department of Hodds and Human Services. (2017). Physical response of the physical service in the physical service of the physical service of pair / physical service of physical service of physical service of pair / physical service of pair / physical service of physical servic Maggi, S., Busetto, L., Noale, M., Limongi, F., & Crepaldi, G. (2015). Obesity: Definition and epidemiology. In A. Lenzi, S. Migliascio, & L. M. Donini (Eds.). Multifactioniary approach to obsity: From assessment to treatment (pp. 31–39). New York, NY: Springer.
 World Health Organization. (2014). Overweight and obesity. Avail-int / m-4incentre/factcheets/fs311/en 2. World Health Segmination, (2014). Correctly and indexity, Availability, and and adult develoy in the United States, 2011-2012. (AAA, J116), 806–814.
P. Schwarz, K. (2009). The medical rules of observation, 2016). Our neight Availability, 21–33.
C. Centen for Disease Control and Preventions, (2016). Our neight Availability, 21–33.
C. Centen soft Disease Control and Preventions, (2016). Our neight Availability, 21–33. Recommended Websites and References round out the offerings. and comp. Available at http://www.cdc.gov/abaily.data/ www.bevev.satimit. endotes.com.abail.com.abaily.com.abaily.data/ www.bevev.satimit.com.abaily.com.abaily.com.abaily.com.abaily.com. Heart Association.Circuit/mit.27.ebe-245. C. Cetters of Dissess Centrol and Prevention. (2014). Fast advant physical activity. Available at http://www.cdc.gov/physicalae-tivity/data/leah.html 19.6 Pulmonary Vascular Disorders 31

26 Chapter 19 Neoplastic, Infectious, and Pulmonary Vascular Respiratory Disorders

GLOSSARY

xiv

- Acute bronchitis A very common, self-limited lower respiratory tract inflammation; often referred to as a "chest cold." Adenocarcinoma A common form of lung cancer that starts in the lining of the glands.
- Antigenicity The ability to stimulate the formation of antibe Bacillus Calmette-Guérin (BCG): Tuberculosis vaccine that is one of the most widely used vaccines throughout the world. Benign In reference to a tumor, one that does not spread to, invade, and destroy surrounding tissue.
- Jastomycosis: A fungal infection caused by Blastomyces dermatitidis, an uncommon fungus that is found in Ohio, the Creat Lakes region, and the Massisappi River valley; it is common in dogs in endemic areas but also occurs in horses, cows, and bats, and infections in animals can serve as an indicator of human disease.
- Bronchiolitis A condition characterized by inflammation of the
- bronchioles. socidiodomycosis A fungal infection caused by Coccidioides immitiz, which is endemic in the soil in the southwestern United States but can also be found throughout the worldy it grows best in bird feces, also known as Sun Joquin Valley Feer.

- Hospital-acquired pneumonia (HAP) A classification of pneumonia in which the infection was not incubating at the time of hospital admission and develops 48 hours or more after hospital admission.
- nza A highly contagious viral infection that sweeps through ographic region as an epidemic that lasts 6-8 weeks during the
- a geograph
- Pertussis A highly contagious respiratory infections usually cause by Bordetella pertussis that has been controlled in children through pertussis vaccination; also known as whooping cough. r-autore vaccananon; also known as whooping cough. **neumonia** An inflammation of the lung parenchyma that is typically characterized by lung consolidation with alveoli filled with exulate.
- wini exuate. **Julinonary arterial hypertension (PAH)** A primary disorder of increased blood pressure in the pulmonary arteries; characterized by an increased pulmonary arterial resistance in the absence of left ventricular failure or chronic thromboembolism.
- ventrular tailure or enrorie trumoeemboeinsm. Pallionary embolism (PE) Occurs when a substance or object (e.g., blood clot, fat globule, air bubble, bone fragment, or fore matter) is pumped from the right heart into progressively sma pulmonary arteries until it wedges in a vessel that is too small

At the end of the book, students will find a complete **Glossary**.

Chapter Features

To enhance the content offered within the usual structure, we have feature boxes throughout:

Healthy People 2020 features highlight the role of the Healthy People initiative and

the topics and objectives for healthcare that in contains.

Healthy People 2020 Nutrition and Weight Status

The overall goal of the Nutrition and Weight Status objectives for Healthy Repole 2020 is to promote health and reduce the risk of chronic disease through healthful diets and the achievement and mainterance of healthy body weights. In addition, these objec-tives emphasize that efforts to modify diet and weight should address individual behaviors along with the policies and envi-ronments that support these behaviors. Those objectives are broadly divided into the following categories: HealthCare and Worksite Settings, Weight Status, Food Insecurity, Food and Nutritier Consumption, and Iron Deficiency.¹ The primary objec-tives are sollows:

- Increase the number of states with nutrition standards for foods and beverages provided to preschool-aged children in child care.
- Increase the proportion of schools that offer nutritious foods and beverages outside of school meals. Increase the number of states that have state-level policies
- Increase the nonliviar food retail outlets to provide foods that are encouraged by the Dietary Guidelines for Americans. Increase the proportion of Americans who have access to a food retail outlet that sells a variety of foods that are encour
 - aged by the Dietary Guidelines for Americans.

Healthcare and Worksite Settings

- annore and worksite setungs Increase the projection of primary care physicians who regu-larly measure the body mass index of their patients. Increase the proportion of physican office visits that include counseling or education related to nutrition or weight. Increase the proportion of worksites that offer nutrition or weight management classes or counseling.

Weight Status

- Increase the proportion of adults who are at a healthy weight.
- Reduce the proportion of adults who are obese.
 Reduce the proportion of adults who are obese.
 Reduce the proportion of children and adolescents who are considered obese.
- ate weight gain in youth and adults.

Food Insecurity

- Food insecutity is the inability to access sufficient safe, nutritious food that is needed to maintain a healthy and active life.² Eliminate very low food security among children. Reduce household food insecurity and in doing so reduce
- hunger.

Food and Nutrient Consumption

- Increase the contribution of fruits to the diets of the population
- Increase the contribution of fruits to the diets of the population aged 2 years and older.
 Increase the variety and contribution of vegetables to the diets of the population aged 2 years and older.
 Increase the contribution of whole grains to the diets of the population aged 2 years and older.
 Reduce consumption of calories from solid fats and added sugars in the population aged 2 years and older.
 Reduce consumption of saturated fat in the population aged 2 years and older.
 Deduce consumption of calories the solid lats and added sugars and older.
- R
- duce consumption of sodium in the population aged 2 years and older Increase consumption of calcium in the population aged
- 2 years and older

Iron Deficiency

- Reduce iron deficiency among young children and females of
- childbearing age. Reduce iron deficiency among pregnant females.

References

 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. (2017). Nutrition and weight status. Available at http://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/ topics-objectives/topic/nutrition-and-weight-status World Health Organization. (2014). Trade, foreign policy, diplomacy and health. Available at http://www.who.int/trade/glossary/story028/en

Impact of Current Research on Clinical Practice Treatment of Fatigue with a Central Nervous System Stimulan

Description: Fatigue and depression are common near the end of life and have a negative effect on the person's quality of life. In a double-bind investigation in which neither clinicians nor patients knew whether the patient received the investi-gational medication or placebo, 30 hospice patients in either inpatient or outpatient settings were randomized to receive treatment with either methylphenidate (Metadate, Ritalin), a mild central nervous system stimulant that increases the levels of norepinephrine and dopamine in the brain, or a placebo. The placebo was a tablet that looked identical to methyphenidate but contained starch instead of the medication. The research study nurse conducted the physical assessments and admin-istered the symptom assessment scales. While all patients re-ported fatigue, no differences in severity scores were observed between the treatment and placebo groups at the beginning of the study. Description: Fatigue and depression are common near the

Clinical Practice: A statistically significant decrease in the verify of fatigue was observed by day 14 in the group treated with methylphenidate. No improvement in fatigue was expe-rienced by patients in the placebo group. Patients treated with methylphenidate who had clinically significant depression at the beginning of the study experienced improvement in depression based on three depression self-report scales; less improvement was noted in the placebo group. These results support the use of the central nervous system stimulant methylphenicate to improve the quality of life of patients experiencing fatigue or depression associated with terminal illness.

Research Study: Kerr, C., Drake, J., Milch, R., et al. (2012). Effects of methylphenidate on fatigue and depression: A random-ized, double-bind, placebo-controlled trial. *Journal of Pain and Symptom Management*, 43(1), 68–77.

Impact of Current Research on

Clinical Practice features show students how research is used clinically to highlight the importance of evidencebased practice.

Impact of Nutrition in Clinical Practice

features highlight the importance of nutrition in health promotion, disease prevention, and nursing management of patients.

Impact of Nutrition in Clinical Practice Nutrition at the End of Life loanne Kouba

At the end of life, the goal is for the patient to eat for pleasure and satisfaction. Dietary restrictions are eliminated, and patients are encouraged to eat and drink whatever foods and fluids appeal to them. Patients and family members must receive information about anorexia and cachexia as an expected consequence of end-stage disease. They should be informed that better care or increased effort to feed the patient will not reverse cachexia because the pro-cess of muscle protein degradation is not due just to decreased caloric intake and therefore does not respond to interventions such as supplemental nutrition or high-calorie foods. Enteral feedings via

gastrostomy or nasogastric tubes are limited to patients who state that they are hungry but do not have the mechanical ability to eat. Artificial hydration and nutrition at the end of life is a subject of considerable controversy. The benefits must be weighed against the burdens of such treatment, including the associated risks The outcens of such treatment, including use associated risks of fluid overlaad, peripheral and pulmonary defma, electrolyte imbalances, inflection, and aspiration into the lungs. A decrease in food and fluid intake is part of the normal process of dying; as death approaches, parenteral and enteral feeding does not improve symptoms or prolong life.

Genetics and Genomics for Clinical Practice DNA Mutation in Lung Cancer

DNA Mutation in Lung Cancer A variety of oncogenes (e.g., MYC, KPAS, EGFR, c-MET, and c/GT), deleted or mutated turnor supressor genes such as p53, fusion genes such as BML-44LK,¹² and activated signal transduction molecules have been associated with lung can-cer. The pattern for specific genetic alterations varies with the type or subtype of lung cancer. For example, KPAS is most common genetic mutation in adenocaricinomas in women who socks, while epidermal growth factor receptor gene (EGFR) occurs more commonly in adenocaricinomas in women who not moke and Asians; p53 mutations occur most commonly in squamous cell carcinomas but also are present in small cell carcinomas.¹² The EML-ALK tusion gene in non-small cell lung cancer does not exist with EGFR or KPAS mutations, and its presence identifies a subset of individuals with non-small cell presence identifies a subset of individuals with non-small cell lung cancer that will respond to ALK-targeted agents but not

EGFR tyrosine kinase inhibitors.¹² The importance of this genetic research is that it will allow targeting of the specific sensitivities of a turnor with oncology medications that will interfere with turnor growth.^{12,13}

CLINICAL POINT: Cigarette smoking has been directly linked to DNA mutations by a specific metabolite of benzo(a)pyrene in cigarette smoke that damages three specific loci on the p53 tumor suppressor gene. The p53 tumor suppressor gene mutations are present in approximately 60% of all lung cancers. Cigarette smoke contains over 200 carcinogens that act as initiators (polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons), promoters (phenol derivatives), and contaminants such as radioactive elements, arsenic, nickel, molds, and additives.

Genetics and Genomics for

Clinical Practice features demonstrate the foundational importance of genetics and genomics in the study of pathophysiology.

Visuals

All of the artwork in **Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease** has been specifically created for this text. It is attractive, realistic, and accurate. Visual learners in particular will be delighted to see the detailed illustrations.



MyLab Nursing

MyLab Nursing is an online learning and practice environment that works with the text to help students master key concepts, prepare for the NCLEX-RN exam, and develop clinical reasoning skills. Through a new mobile experience, students can study *Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease* anytime, anywhere. New adaptive technology with remediation personalizes learning, moving students beyond memorization to true understanding and application of the content. MyLab Nursing contains the following features:

Dynamic Study Modules

New adaptive learning modules with remediation that personalize the learning experience by allowing students to increase both their confidence and their performance while being assessed in real time.



NCLEX-Style Questions

Practice tests with more than 1000 NCLEX-style questions of various types build student confidence and prepare them for success on the NCLEX-RN exam. Questions are organized by Chapter.



Decision Making Cases

Clinical case studies that provide opportunities for students to practice analyzing information and making important decisions at key moments in patient care scenarios. These 15 unfolding case studies are designed to help prepare students for clinical practice.

THING THIS DECIDE DECID	Internet and Color	i dos searancomo com
Dist.	Understanding BMI	PEARSON
KINA DECIMAN	ACTION DECISION	
Literature engliseitente	You review the BMI measurements that have been calculated for Yashika throughout her course of care. Considering the documented BMI measurements, which of Yashika's statements indicate a need for further teaching?	Pathophysiology Decision Making Case 1
	Please select all that apply.	Productions Control Decisions Product Decisions P
	 "I may develop striae." 	Halawith B Falawith B Falawith B
	⇒ "I am glad my BMI is improving."	Your Decisions
	You tactfully explain to Yashika that although her BMI initially decreased, her weight has increased since her last visit. As a result,	1 Actes Decision Submitted 01:09 Pares 5 of 5 🗸 Correct
	her BMI has actually increased, which is not an improvement.	Which objective assessment data would be needed to evaluate Yashika's response to her plan of care?
	" " " am happy too longer qualify as being obese."	Your Answer BMI calculation
	"My BMLs in the overweight range."	S Height measurement
	7My BMI is in the overseight range."	Ball calculation Height measurement Weight measurement



Pearson eText

Enhances student learning both in and outside the classroom. Students can take notes, highlight, and bookmark important content, or engage with interactive and rich media to achieve greater conceptual understanding of the text content. Interactive features include audio clips, pop-up definitions, figures, questions and answers, the nursing process, hotspots, and video animations. Some examples of video animations include:

• **Congenital Heart Defect Animations** illustrate the many congenital heart defects that may occur in new-borns and provide students the opportunity to see, hear, and understand how congenital heart defects impair the correct functioning of the heart and how they may be corrected.



Instructor Resources

Instructor Resource Manual Lecture Note Power Points Test bank

Contents

Unit I: Foundations of Pathophysiology

Pathophysiology	2
Chapter 1: Introduction to the Basics of	
Pathophysiology	4
1.1 The Language of Pathophysiology	5
1.2 Overview of Health and Illness	8
1.3 The Structure of Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease	10
1.4 Leading Indicators of Morbidity and	
Mortality	14
1.5 The Importance of Evidence-based Practice	17
Chapter Summary	17
Chapter 2: Genetics, Genomics, and	
Epigenomics	22
2.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	23
2.2 Molecular Basis of Gene Expression	25
2.3 The Human Genome, Genomics, and	
Epigenomics	27
2.4 Gene Replication, Transcription, and	
Translation	28
2.5 Mutations	33
2.6 Categories of Genetic Disorders	34
2.7 Phenotypic Variations in Human Disease	38
2.8 Genes and Neoplasia/Malignancies	38
2.9 Genetic- and Genomic-based Diagnostic Tests	39
2.10 Linking Pathophysiology to Treatment:	
Genetic- and Genomic-based Therapies	40
2.11 Advances in Human Genomics	41
Chapter Summary	42
Chapter 3: Environmental Health Influences	
on Disease and Injury	47
3.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	48
3.2 Environmental Hazard Classification	51

3.3	Key Concepts of Environmental Health from	
	Related Sciences	53
3.4	Environmental Epidemiology	64
35	Pathophysiologic Mechanisms	66

3.5	Pathophysiologic Mechanisms	66
3.6	Hazards and Health Effects of	
	Environmental Agents	67
	Chapter Summary	72

Chapter 4: Stress and Adaptation	77
4.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	78
4.2 Conceptualizations of Stress	79
4.3 The Body in Balance	81
4.4 The Body Responding to Stress	82
4.5 The Effects of Stress on Health	85
4.6 Stress and Mental Health	88
4.7 Stress and Physical Health	89
Chapter Summary	93
Unit II: Risks Underlying the	

Unit II: Risks Underlying the Leading Causes of Morbidity and Mortality

~	~
()	0
ч	\mathbf{a}
/	U.

Chapter 5: Health Risks of Obesity and Physical Inactivity

5.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	101
5.2 Etiology and Pathophysiology of Obe	sity 103
5.3 Health Risks of Obesity	109
5.4 Health Risks of Physical Inactivity	114
Chapter Summary	116

Chapter 6: Risks Related to Substance Use Disorders

6.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	122
6.2 Anatomy and Neurobiology of the Brain	123
6.3 Alcohol Use Disorder	126
6.4 Tobacco Use Disorder	131
6.5 Cannabis Use Disorder	134
6.6 Stimulant Use Disorders	135
6.7 Hallucinogen Use Disorder	138
6.8 Opioid Use Disorder	139
Chapter Summary	140
Chapter 7: Risks Related to Sleep Alterations	145

1	1	
7.1 Chapter Overv	riew and Case Studies	146
7.2 Normal Sleep		147
7.3 Measurement of	of Sleep	150
7.4 Sleep Deprivat	ion	152
7.5 Insomnia		153
7.6 Sleep-Disorder	ed Breathing	155
7.7 Narcolepsy		160
7.8 Restless Legs S	byndrome	161
7.9 Parasomnias		162
Chapter Summ	nary	164

Unit III: Fluid, Electrolyte, and Acid–Base Imbalances 168

Chapter 8: Fluid and Electrolyte Imbalances 170

8.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	171
8.2 Composition and Distribution of	
Body Fluids	172
8.3 Water and Sodium Imbalances	178
8.4 Chloride Imbalances	185
8.5 Potassium Imbalances	186
8.6 Calcium Imbalances	188
8.7 Phosphorus Imbalances	190
8.8 Magnesium Imbalances	191
Chapter Summary	193

197

238

Chapter 9: Acid–Base Imbalances

9.1	Chapter Overview and Case Studies	198
9.2	Characteristics of Acids and Bases and	
	Their Daily Production in the Body	200
9.3	Measures of Hydrogen Ion Concentration	200
9.4	Regulation of Acid–Base Balance	201
9.5	Types and Effects of Acid–Base Imbalances	208
9.6	Laboratory Tests Used in Assessment	
	of Acid–Base Status	212
9.7	Respiratory Acidosis	216
9.8	Respiratory Alkalosis	218
9.9	Metabolic Acidosis	221
9.10	Metabolic Alkalosis	224
9.11	Mixed Acid–Base Imbalances	227
9.12	Stepwise Analysis of Acid–Base	
	Imbalances	228
	Chapter Summary	229

Unit IV: Cell Injury, Inflammation, and Alterations of Cell Growth and Regulation 236

Chapter 10: Mechanisms of Cell Injury and Aging

Chapter Overview and Case Studies	239
The Cell as the Basic Unit of Disease	240
Common Causes of Cell Injury	245
Environmental Factors That Cause	
Cell Injury	249
Impact of Injury on Cell Types Present	
in Many Organs	256
Cellular Responses to Injury	257
Cell Death	262
Aging of the Individual as a Result of	
Cellular Aging	264
Chapter Summary	266
	Chapter Overview and Case Studies The Cell as the Basic Unit of Disease Common Causes of Cell Injury Environmental Factors That Cause Cell Injury Impact of Injury on Cell Types Present in Many Organs Cellular Responses to Injury Cell Death Aging of the Individual as a Result of Cellular Aging Chapter Summary

11.1Chapter Overview and Case Studies2711.2Functions of the Inflammatory Response in Health and Disease2711.3Acute Inflammatory Response2711.4Regulation and Termination of Acute Inflammation2811.5Morphologic Types and Outcomes of Acute Inflammation2811.6Chronic Inflammation2811.7Systemic Manifestations of Inflammation2811.8Impaired and Excessive Inflammation2811.9Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation2811.10Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2812.1Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.3Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4Carcinogenesis36	72 74 76 31 32 33 34
11.2 Functions of the Inflammatory Response in Health and Disease 27 11.3 Acute Inflammatory Response 27 11.4 Regulation and Termination of Acute Inflammation 28 11.5 Morphologic Types and Outcomes of Acute Inflammation 28 11.6 Chronic Inflammation 28 11.7 Systemic Manifestations of Inflammation 28 11.8 Impaired and Excessive Inflammation 28 11.9 Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation 28 11.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation 28 12.1 Chapter 12: Neoplasia 29 12.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation 29 12.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer 29 12.4 Carcinogenesis 30	74 76 31 32 33
Health and Disease2711.3 Acute Inflammatory Response2711.4 Regulation and Termination of Acute Inflammation2811.5 Morphologic Types and Outcomes of Acute Inflammation2811.6 Chronic Inflammation2811.7 Systemic Manifestations of Inflammation2811.8 Impaired and Excessive Inflammation2811.9 Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2812.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis36	74 76 31 32 33
11.3 Acute Inflammatory Response2211.4 Regulation and Termination of Acute Inflammation2811.5 Morphologic Types and Outcomes of Acute Inflammation2811.6 Chronic Inflammation2811.7 Systemic Manifestations of Inflammation2811.8 Impaired and Excessive Inflammation2811.9 Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2812.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.4 Carcinogenesis36	76 31 32 33 34
11.4 Regulation and Termination of Acute Inflammation2811.5 Morphologic Types and Outcomes of Acute Inflammation2811.6 Chronic Inflammation2811.7 Systemic Manifestations of Inflammation2811.8 Impaired and Excessive Inflammation2811.9 Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2812.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis36	31 32 33 34
Inflammation2811.5 Morphologic Types and Outcomes of Acute Inflammation2811.6 Chronic Inflammation2811.7 Systemic Manifestations of Inflammation2811.8 Impaired and Excessive Inflammation2811.9 Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2812.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis36	31 32 33 34
11.5 Morphologic Types and Outcomes of Acute Inflammation2811.6 Chronic Inflammation2811.7 Systemic Manifestations of Inflammation2811.8 Impaired and Excessive Inflammation2811.9 Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2812.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis36	32 33 34
Acute Inflammation2811.6 Chronic Inflammation2811.7 Systemic Manifestations of Inflammation2811.8 Impaired and Excessive Inflammation2811.9 Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation28Chapter 12: Neoplasia2912.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis36	32 33 34
11.6 Chronic Inflammation2811.7 Systemic Manifestations of Inflammation2811.8 Impaired and Excessive Inflammation2811.9 Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2812.1 Chapter Summary2812.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis36	33 34
11.7 Systemic Manifestations of Inflammation2811.8 Impaired and Excessive Inflammation2811.9 Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation2812.1 Chapter Summary2812.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis36	34
11.8 Impaired and Excessive Inflammation2411.9 Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation2411.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation24Chapter Summary24Chapter 12: Neoplasia2912.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis36	
11.9 Overview of Disorders Associated with Chronic Inflammation2611.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation26Chapter Summary28Chapter 12: Neoplasia2912.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis36	35
Chronic Inflammation2811.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation28Chapter Summary28Chapter 12: Neoplasia2912.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis30	
11.10 Linking Pathophysiology to the Diagnosis and Treatment of Inflammation28Chapter Summary28Chapter 12: Neoplasia2912.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis30	36
and Treatment of Inflammation28Chapter Summary28Chapter 12: Neoplasia2912.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis30	
Chapter Summary28Chapter 12: Neoplasia2912.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis30	37
Chapter 12: Neoplasia2912.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis30	39
12.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies2912.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis30	94
12.2 Cell Cycle and Cellular Differentiation2912.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis30	9 5
12.3 Molecular Basis of Cancer2912.4 Carcinogenesis30	97
12.4 Carcinogenesis 30	99
12.1 Curchiogeneoio)3
12.5 Cancer Invasion and Metastasis 30)5
12.6 Epidemiology of Cancer 30)7
12.7 Clinical Manifestations of Cancer 33	11
12.8 Linking Pathophysiology to Diagnosis and	
Treatment 31	
Chapter Summary 32	13

Unit V: Infection and Disorders of Immunity

rders of Immunity	324
-------------------	-----

326

Chapter 13: Mechanisms of Infection	
and Host Protection	
13.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	

13.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	327
13.2 The Host–Microbe Relationship	329
13.3 From Pathogen to Infectious Disease	331
13.4 Microbial Agents of Infectious Disease	336
13.5 The Innate and Adaptive Immune	
Response to Infectious Microoorganisms	349
13.6 Resistance to Infectious Disease	352
13.7 Resistance to Different Microbial Pathogens as Mediated by Different Host Protective	
Mechanisms	353
13.8 Immune Deficient/Susceptible Host	354
13.9 Protection from Infectious Disease by	
Vaccination	355
Chapter Summary 3	357

Chapter 14: Hypersensitivity and Autoimmune Disorders

Autoimmune Disorders	363
14.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	364
14.2 Hypersensitivity Disorders	367
14.3 Autoimmune Disease	374
Chapter Summary	378
Chapter 15: Immunodeficiency Disorders	381
15.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	382
15.2 HIV and AIDS	383
15.3 Common Conditions Associated with	201
HIV/AIDS	391
15.4 Primary Immunodeficiencies	393
Chapter Summary	395
Chapter 16: Disorders of White	
Blood Cells	400
16.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	401
16.2 Acute Myelogenous Leukemia	403
16.3 Acute Lymphocytic Leukemia	406
16.4 Chronic Myelogenous Leukemia	408
16.5 Chronic Lymphocytic Leukemia	409
16.6 Non-Hodgkin Lymphoma	411
16.7 Hodgkin Lymphoma	414
16.8 Multiple Myeloma	415
Chapter Summary	416

UnitVI: Disorders of

Oxygenation

Chapter 17: Restrictive Lung Disorders	424
17.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	425
17.2 Restrictive Lung Disorders of Pulmonary Expansion	427
17.3 Restrictive Lung Disorders of Pulmonary	
Compliance	434
Chapter Summary	436
Chapter 18: Obstructive Lung Disorders	440
18.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	441
18.2 Alterations in Respiratory Structure and	
Function	442
18.3 Asthma	445
18.4 Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease	450
18.5 Cystic Fibrosis	457
18.6 Bronchiectasis	459
Chapter Summary	460

Chapter 19: Neoplastic, Infectious, and Pulmonary Vascular Respiratory Disorders

19.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	466
19.2 Malignant Lung Tumors	467
19.3 Benign Lung Lesions	471
19.4 Infectious Diseases of the Upper	
Respiratory Tract	476
19.5 Infectious Diseases of the Lower	
Respiratory Tract	478
19.6 Pulmonary Vascular Disorders	486
Chapter Summary	489
Chapter 20: Respiratory Failure	494
20.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	495
20.2 Respiratory Failure: Type I and Type II	496
20.3 Disorders Causing Respiratory Failure	501
Chapter Summary	509
Chapter 21: Disorders of Oxygen Transport	513
21.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	514
21.2 Characteristics of Anemia	515
21.3 Nutritional Deficiency Anemias	519
21.4 Hemolytic Anemias	522
21.5 Anemia of Chronic Disease	527
21.6 Polycythemia Vera	528
Chapter Summary	529
-	

UnitVII: Disorders of Perfusion

Chapter 22: Alterations of Hemostasis	534
22.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	535
22.2 Review of Hemostatic Mechanisms	538
22.3 Primary Disorders of Hemostasis	539
22.4 Secondary Disorders of Hemostasis	545
22.5 Issues of Hypercoagulopathy	546
Chapter Summary	548
Chapter 23: Vascular Disorders	552
23.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	553
23.2 Peripheral Arterial Disease	555
23.3 Chronic Venous Disease	559
23.4 Hypertension	562
Chapter Summary	568

Chapter 24: Coronary Circulation Disorders 572

24.1	Chapter Overview and Case Studies	573
24.2	Epidemiology and Risk Factors Related	
04.0	to Coronary Artery Disease	575
24.3	Pathophysiology, Diagnosis, and	576
04.4	Ireatment of Coronary Artery Disease	5/6
24.4	Myocardial Ischemia and Infarction	581
24.5	Specific Acute Coronary Syndromes	588
24.6	Complications of Acute Coronary	E04
247	Syndromes Veleveler Disordore	094
24.7	valvular Disorders	603
	Chapter Summary	606
Chap	ter 25: Cardiac Structural Disorders	612
25.1	Chapter Overview and Case Studies	613
25.2	Structure of the Pediatric Cardiovascular	
	System	614
25.3	Prenatal and Postnatal Hemodynamics	615
25.4	Genetics and Genomics of Critical	
	Congenital Heart Defects	617
25.5	Congenital Heart Defects	619
25.6	Linking Pathophysiology to Diagnosis and Treatment of Critical Congenital Heart	
	Defects	628
25.7	Linking Pathophysiology to Diagnosis and Treatment of Adult Congenital Heart	
	Disorders	629
25.8	Noncongenital Structural Heart Defects	631
25.9	Linking Pathophysiology to Diagnosis and Treatment of Noncongenital Structural	
	Heart Defects	632
	Chapter Summary	633
Chan	tor 96. Hoart Esiluro	627
Chap		007
26.1	Chapter Overview and Case Studies	638
26.2	Classification and Staging of Heart	630
263	Systolic Hoart Failure (Hoart Failure with	057
20.5	Reduced Fiection Fraction)	642
26.4	Diastolic Heart Failure (Heart Failure	012
20. 1	with Preserved Ejection Fraction)	651
26.5	Left-Sided Heart Failure	652
26.6	Right-Sided Heart Failure	653
26.7	High-Output Heart Failure	655
2017	Chapter Summary	656

Chapter 27: Disorders of Circulation Within the CNS

Withi	n the CNS	660
27.1	Chapter Overview and Case Studies	661
27.2	Vascular Supply of the Central Nervous	
	System	662
27.3	Production and Circulation of Cerebrospinal	
	Fluid	664
27.4	Blood–Brain Barrier	665
27.5	Cerebral Autoregulation	666
27.6	Ischemia and Hypoxia of the Central	
	Nervous System	669
27.7	Transient Ischemic Attack	670
27.8	Ischemic and Hemorrhagic Stroke	671
27.9	Subdural and Spinal Cord	
	Hemorrhage	675
	Chapter Summary	676
Chap	ter 28: Shock and Multiple Organ	
Dysfu	unction Syndrome	680
28.1	Chapter Overview and Case Studies	681
28.2	Pathophysiology of Shock	682
28.3	Hypovolemic Shock	684
28.4	Cardiogenic Shock	688
28.5	Distributive Shock	690
28.6	Obstructive Shock	695
28.7	Multiple Organ Dysfunction Syndrome	696
	Chapter Summary	696

Unit VIII: Disorders of Mood and Cognition

Chapter 29: Emotional Regulation and Mood

29.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	703
29.2 Anxiety	704
29.3 Depression	713
29.4 Bipolar Disorders	722
Chapter Summary	724

Chapter 30: Neurocognitive and Neurodevelopmental Disorders

Neurodevelopmental Disorders	
30.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	731
30.2 Pathophysiology of Neurocognitive and	

Neurodevelopmental Disorders73330.3 Schizophrenia73530.4 Neurocognitive Disorders73730.5 Genetic Neurodevelopmental Disorders740Chapter Summary743

Unit IX: Disorders of Sensory Perception and Thermoregulation 748

Chapter 31: Disorders of Hearing, Balance, and Vision

nd Vision	750
31.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	751
31.2 Basic Anatomy and Physiology of Hearing and Balance	753
31.3 Conductive Hearing Loss Disorders	755
31.4 Sensorineural Hearing Loss Disorders	759
31.5 Basic Anatomy and Physiology of Vision	765
31.6 External Eye Disorders	767
31.7 Vision Disorders	768
31.8 Nystagmus	772
Chapter Summary	773

Chapter 32: Pain, Neuropathy, and Headache 778

32.1	Chapter Overview and Case Studies	779
32.2	Neuroanatomy of Pain	780
32.3	Assessment of Pain	787
32.4	Acute Pain	790
32.5	Chronic Pain	792
32.6	Neuropathic Pain	793
32.7	Headache	799
32.8	Other Pain Syndromes	803
32.9	Pain Assessment and Management in	
	Nonverbal or Cognitively Impaired Patients	805
	Chapter Summary	807
Chap	ter 33: Disorders of Thermoregulation	815
33.1	Chapter Overview and Case Studies	816
33.2	Body Temperature Regulation	818
33.3	Thermoregulatory Processes and	
	Control Mechanisms	818
33.4	Hypothermia	822
33.5	Fever	829
33.6	Hyperthermia	832
	Chapter Summary	834

Unit X: Disorders of Mobility 840

Chapter 34: Disorders Affecting Motor

Function	
34.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	843
34.2 Parkinson Disease	844
34.3 Multiple Sclerosis	848
34.4 Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis	853
34.5 Huntington Disease	854
34.6 Seizure Disorders	856
Chapter Summary	859
 34.3 Multiple Sclerosis 34.4 Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis 34.5 Huntington Disease 34.6 Seizure Disorders Chapter Summary 	848 853 854 856 859

Chapter 35: Acute Musculoskeletal Disorders

Disorders	863
35.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	864
35.2 Fractures	864
35.3 Dislocations and Subluxations	871
35.4 Nerve Entrapment	871
35.5 Bursitis	872
35.6 Strains and Sprains	873
35.7 Knee Injuries	873
35.8 Shoulder Injuries	875
35.9 Bone Infections and Tumors	876
Chapter Summary	879
Chapter 36: Chronic Musculoskeletal	
Disorders	883
36.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	884
36.2 Lower Back Pain	885
36.3 Rheumatic and Arthritic Disorders	891
36.4 Metabolic Bone Disease	897

Unit XI: Disorders of Endocrine Regulation 902

Chapter 37: Diabetes Mellitus and Its Complications

Chapter Summary

37.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	905
37.2 Classification of Diabetes Mellitus and	
Prediabetes	907
37.3 Maintenance of Normal Blood	
Glucose Levels	908
37.4 Type 1 Diabetes Mellitus	912
37.5 Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus	914
37.6 Clinical Manifestations of and Diagnostic	
Criteria for Diabetes Mellitus	916
37.7 Acute Complications of Diabetes Mellitus	918
37.8 Chronic Complications of Diabetes Mellitus	924
Chapter Summary	929
Chapter 38: Thyroid, Parathyroid, and	
Adrenal Disorders	933
38.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	934
38.2 Mechanisms of Hormonal Alterations	
in Thyroid and Adrenal Disease	935
38.3 Disorders of the Thyroid	936

38.4 Disorders of the Parathyroid94138.5 Disorders of Adrenocortical Function943Chapter Summary949

899

904

Unit XII: Altered Tissue Integrity

Chapter 39: Tissue and Wound Healing	954
39.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	955
39.2 The Structure of the Skin	956
39.3 Cutaneous Wound Healing	961
39.4 Factors Impeding Wound Healing	969
39.5 Spectrum of Wound Healing	972
39.6 Pressure Injuries	975
Chapter Summary	978
Chapter 40: Acute Skin Disorders	982
40.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	983
40.2 Bacterial Skin Infections	984
40.3 Fungal Skin Infections	988
40.4 Dermatitis	991
40.5 Life-threatening Inflammatory Disorders	995
40.6 Stings and Bites	997
40.7 Disorders Caused by Infestations	999
40.8 Disorders Associated with Adolescent/	
Adult Skin	1002
40.9 Disorders of the Nail	1004
Chapter Summary	1005
Chapter 41: Chronic Skin Disorders	1011
41.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	1012
41.2 Viral Skin Infections	1013
41.3 Skin Disorders with a Genetic Basis	1017

1.5 Skill Disolders with a Genetic Dasis	1017
41.4 Benign Neoplasms of the Skin	1023
41.5 Skin Cancer	1027
41.6 Changes in Pigmentation of the Skin	1030
41.7 Disorders of the Hair and Scalp	1032
Chapter Summary	1035

Unit XIII: Disorders of Digestion, Metabolism, and Elimination

4	0	4	0
	11	4	()
_	U	т	U

Chapter 42: Disorders of Upper and Lower Gastrointestinal Systems

42.1	Chapter Overview and Case Studies	1043
42.2	Disorders of the Esophagus	1045
42.3	Disorders of the Stomach	1053
42.4	Disorders of the Small Intestines, Large	
	Intestines, and Rectum	1057
	Chapter Summary	1065

Chapter 43: Disorders of the ExocrinePancreatic and Hepatobiliary Systems107043.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies107143.2 Disorders of the Liver107243.3 Disorders of the Gallbladder108343.4 Disorders of the Pancreas1088

Chapter Summary	1092		
Chapter 44: Liver Failure			
44.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	1097		
44.2 The Normal Liver	1098		
44.3 Clinical Manifestations and			
Complications of Liver Failure	1099		
44.4 Common Causes of Liver Failure	1103		
Chapter Summary	1111		
Chapter 45: Disorders of Kidney and			
Urinary Tract Function	1115		
45.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	1116		
45.2 Glomerular Disorders	1118		
45.3 Diabetic Nephropathy	1122		
45.4 Hypertensive Nephropathy	1123		
45.5 Urinary Tract Infections	1125		
45.6 Renal Calculi	1127		
45.7 Urinary Incontinence	1127		
45.8 Benign Tumors and Malignancies of			
the Kidney and Bladder	1128		
Chapter Summary	1130		
Chapter 46: Acute Kidney Injury and			
Chronic Kidney Disease 11			
16.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	1126		

•	
46.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	1136
46.2 Acute Kidney Injury	1137
46.3 Chronic Kidney Disease	1144
Chapter Summary	1155

Unit XIV: Disorders of Sexuality and Reproduction 1160

Chapter 47: Disorders of the Female Reproductive System

47.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	1163
47.2 Disorders of the Female Breasts	1164
47.3 Disorders of Menstruation	1169
47.4 Disorders of the Ovaries and Fallopian Tubes	1172
47.5 Disorders of the Uterus	1175
47.6 Disorders of the Cervix, Vagina, and Vulva	1178
47.7 Disorders of the Female Pelvis	1181
47.8 Disorders of Fertility	1182
47.9 Sexual Dysfunction	1183
Chapter Summary	1185

Chapter 48: Disorders of the Male Reproductive System

48.1	Chapter Overview and Case Studies	1193
48.2	Disorders of the Prostate	1194
48.3	Disorders of the Testicles	1197
48.4	Disorders of the Penis	1200
	Chapter Summary	1203

1192

1222

1244

Chapter 49: Sexually Transmitted Infections 1206

49.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	1207
49.2 Viral STIs	1208
49.3 Bacterial STIs	1211
49.4 Parasitic STIs	1214
Chapter Summary	1216

Unit XV: Trauma and Multisystem Conditions 1220

Chapter 50: Mechanisms of Traumatic Injury

, <u> </u>	
50.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies	1223
50.2 Modern Trauma Care	1224
50.3 Blunt Trauma	1226
50.4 Penetrating Trauma	1228
50.5 Thermal Injuries	1231
50.6 Chemical Burns	1235
50.7 Electrical Injuries	1236
50.8 Lethal Triad of Trauma	1237
50.9 Trauma Deaths and Trauma	
Prevention	1238
Chapter Summary	1239

Chapter 51: The Pathophysiology of Primary and Secondary Traumatic Injury

51.1 Chapter Overview and Case Study	1245
51.2 The Primary Survey and Injury	1248
51.3 The Secondary Survey and Injury	1260
Chapter Summary	1266

Chapter 52: Biologic, Chemical, and
Radiologic Agents of Disease127152.1 Chapter Overview and Case Studies127252.2 Biologic Agents127452.3 Chemical Agents128152.4 Radiologic and Nuclear Devices
Chapter Summary1287Chapter 53: Pathophysiology at the

1291
1292
1295
1295
1298
1299
1300
1303
1305
1306
1307
1308
1309
1311
1312
A-0
G-0

- Credits C-0
- Index I-0

This page intentionally left blank

Pathophysiology Concepts of Human Disease

Unit I Foundations of Pathophysiology

Chapter 1

Introduction to the Basics of Pathophysiology

Chapter 2

Genetics, Genomics, and Epigenomics

Pathophysiology is the study of functional alterations at the molecular, cellular, tissue, and organ system levels that are involved in disease states, and also involves the study of the impact of alterations in one organ system on the function of others. Understanding these alterations is the basis for understanding the mechanisms that are responsible for clinical manifestations of disease, both those noted by the healthcare provider on physical assessment or through diagnostics, such as x-rays, and those that the patient reports to the provider.

Underneath all physiologic mechanisms, there are basic principles at play. Through understanding these basic principles, or concepts, a healthcare professional can apply that knowledge across different situations and disease states. For example, Down syndrome is a genetic disorder caused by trisomy of chromosome 21. It can result in miscarriage or in a live-born child with a combination of congenital birth defects, characteristic facial features, and variable degrees of mental impairment. The degree of impairment may be influenced by environmental variables, such as the mother's prenatal health and prenatal nutrition.^{1,2} Impairment may also be affected after birth by the family's ability to afford and access early intervention services, appropriate nutrition, and healthcare for the child. In other words, the quality of services and care available in the family's social environment will affect the child's longterm health and ability to interact with other people and function in his environment.

Stress and adaptation also play a role. The ability of the child's parents to respond to the stresses of having a child with Down syndrome will affect their own physical and mental health and that of all their children. The first and possibly the most important stressor for the family of a child with Down syndrome is the time of diagnosis, which can initiate a period of intense feelings of grief and loss.³ The degree of the child's impairment in turn affects the family environment and stress levels. In children with disabilities such as Down syndrome, co-occurring seizures, anxiety, irritability, and greater extent of disability in the affected child all have been linked to increased financial and employment strain on parents and caregivers.⁴ To close the circle, cultural variables, another aspect of social environment, also play a role. A family's understanding of why their child has Down syndrome may be culturally influenced.

Chapter 3

Environmental Influences on Disease and Injury

Chapter 4

Stress, Adaptation, and Psychoneuroimmunology

Further, if a family receives poor treatment from healthcare providers who lack cultural competency, the family may be reluctant to continue return for further treatment.⁵

The chapters in this unit address key factors that inform pathophysiology and, in turn, inform the care of patients. Underlying pathophysiology of an illness can be influenced by any combination of individual and family behaviors and lifestyles (including cultural beliefs and preferences), physical and mental wellness states, genetic and epigenetic factors, environmental factors at both the individual and population levels, and the neurologic and physiologic mechanisms that regulate how—and how well—the individual reacts and adapts to stress.

References

- Coppedé, F. (2016). Risk factors for Down syndrome. Archives of Toxicology, 90(12), 2917–2929.
- Hildebrand, E., Kallen, B., Josefsson, A., Gottvall, T., & Blomberg, M. (2014). Maternal obesity and risk of Down syndrome in the offspring. *Prenatal Diagnosis*, 34(4), 310–315.
- Nelson Goff, B. S., Springer, N., Cline Foote, L., Frantz, C., Peak, M., Tracy C., Veh, T., Bentley, G. E., & Cross, K. A. (2013). Receiving the initial Down syndrome diagnosis: A comparison of prenatal and postnatal parent group experiences. *Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities*, 51(6), 446–457.
- Ouyang, L., Grosse, S. D., Riley, C., Bolen, J., Bishop E., Raspa, M., & Bailey, D. B., Jr. (2014). A comparison of family financial and employment impacts of fragile X syndrome, autism spectrum disorders, and intellectual disability. *Research in Developmental Disabilities*, 35(7), 1518–1527.
- 5. Spector, R. (2017). *Cultural diversity in health and illness* (9th ed.). New York, NY: Pearson.

Social Environment Factors

- Financial resources
- Access to health and mental health services
- Community resources

Physical Environment Factors

- Prenatal health of the mother
- Prenatal nutrition
- Newborn and early childhood nutrition and feeding practices
- Safe environment

Stress and Adaptation

- Number and nature of stressors
- Response and adaptation
 Coping mechanisms and
- Coping mechanisms and resources

Individual and Family **Behaviors** • Substance use Abuse and neglect Parenting styles Communication styles • Activity levels Genetic and **Epigenetic Factors** • Family history of physical or mental illness • Susceptibility for genetic disorders Physical and Mental Wellness • Healthy behaviors • Presence of chronic physical or mental illness in the home • Trauma history

Stress Response Curve

HOMEO- STASIS	PHASE 1	PHASE 2	PHASE 3
	Alarm Reaction	Stage of Resistance	Stage of Exhaustion
Homeosta	sis tressor		Recovery
			Death

Chapter 1 Introduction to the Basics of Pathophysiology

Matthew Sorenson, Laurie Quinn, and Diane Klein

Chapter Outline and Learning Outcomes

1.1 The Language of Pathophysiology

Define the conceptual basis for and the language used in the study of pathophysiology.

1.2 Overview of Health and Illness

Describe characteristics of risk factors associated with health and illness.

1.3 The Structure of Pathophysiology: Concepts of Human Disease

Outline the structure of this book/eText, including the pathogenesis and etiology of disease; the clinical

manifestations of disorders; how pathophysiology is linked to diagnosis and treatment; and the impact of genetics, nutrition, and lifespan on health and illness.

1.4 Leading Indicators of Morbidity and Mortality Describe the study of epidemiology, and outline the leading indicators of morbidity and mortality in the United States.

1.5 The Importance of Evidence-based Practice Explain the importance of evidence-based practice.

KEY TERMS

Clinical manifestations, 10 Disease, 8 Disorder, 8 Epidemiology, 14 Epigenomics, 11 Etiology, 10 Evidence-based practice (EBP), 17 Exacerbation, 11 Genetics, 11 Genomics, 11 Health, 8

- Iatrogenic, 10 Idiopathic, 10 Illness, 8 Incidence, 14 Injury, 8 Ischemia, 7 Hypertension, 8 Modifiable risk factor, 9 Morbidity, 15 Mortality, 15 Nonmodifiable risk factor, 9
- Pathogenesis, 10 Pathology, 5 Pathophysiology, 5 Prevalence, 14 Public health, 14 Remission, 11 Risk factor, 9 Sign, 10 Symptom, 10 Syndrome, 9

ABBREVIATIONS

CDC—Centers for Disease Control and Prevention DALY—disability-adjusted life-year EBP—evidence-based practice IOM—Institute of Medicine

NIH—National Institutes of Health WHO—World Health Organization

1.1 The Language of Pathophysiology Essential Terminology

Pathophysiology is the study of functional alterations at the molecular, cellular, tissue, and organ system levels that are involved in disease states. Because many organ systems are interrelated, pathophysiology also involves the study of how alterations in one organ system can affect the function of others. Understanding these alterations is the basis for understanding the mechanisms responsible for clinical manifestations of disease noted on physical assessment or reported by the patient. In other words, pathophysiology is important in order to understand *why* alterations happen rather than just *what* happens.

Understanding pathophysiology requires knowledge of the principles of normal anatomy and physiology. These principles are briefly reviewed at the beginning of each relevant chapter. By understanding the normal physiology of the renal system, for example, it is possible to reason out at least some of the expected alterations in the individual as a result of impaired renal function, such as acute or chronic renal failure. The focus in this book is the concepts underlying the physiologic and pathophysiologic changes seen in association with disease.

Pathology is a medical discipline that focuses on structural alterations in tissues and organs and is closely related to pathophysiology. This discipline involves the analysis of specimens, such as tissue, blood, urine, and sputum removed from patients for the purpose of aiding in the diagnosis of certain diseases and assessing their progression. Other scientific disciplines contribute to the process of understanding the pathogenic process of disease. Histology is a subdivision of pathology that studies the microscopic anatomy of cells and tissues either in the form of samples from a patient or grown outside the body in tissue culture. Specialized stains are used in histologic studies to identify various cell types, the organization of the cells, and intracellular contents as viewed with the aid of light or electron microscopy. These interrelated disciplines of pathophysiology, pathology, and histology are all important in understanding disease processes.

The Conceptual Basis of Pathophysiology

Underneath all physiologic mechanisms, there are basic principles at play. Through understanding these basic principles, or concepts, a healthcare professional can apply that knowledge across different situations and disease states.

For a listing of concepts featured in this book, see **Table 1.1**. Each primary concept has related subconcepts that reflect related biophysiologic processes. Examples of disease states that reflect the pathogenic concept are also provided.

Pharmacologic therapies and nursing interventions are based on the conceptual mechanisms that underlie a pathogenic process. For example, in the treatment of

Biophysiologic Concepts	Subconcept	Examples of Diseases/Conditions Related to the Concept
Acid-base balance	Excretion	Metabolic acidosis/alkalosis Respiratory acidosis/alkalosis
Addiction	Dependence Loss of control Tolerance Withdrawal	Alcohol abuse or dependence Behavioral addiction (e.g., gambling, gaming, shopping) Opiate abuse or dependence
Cellular regulation	Cell differentiation Cell growth	Cellular aging Cellular injury Neoplasia Tissue and wound healing
Cognition	Behavior Judgment Memory	Dementia Delirium Depression and anxiety Thought disorders
Comfort	Acute pain Chronic pain	Headache Neuropathy
Elimination	Bowel and bladder function Hydration Nutrition	Acute kidney injury Bowel obstruction Ulcerative colitis Urinary incontinence
Energy balance	Environment Metabolism Nutrition Thermoregulation	Cachexia Fatigue Obesity Wasting syndrome
Environment	Culture Hydration Nutrition Society	Air pollution Lead poisoning Mercury poisoning Food-borne infections Lifestyle risk factors

Table 1.1 Biophysiologic Concepts

Table 1.1 Biophysiologic Concepts Continued

Biophysiologic Concepts	Subconcept	Examples of Diseases/Conditions Related to the Concept
Fluid and electrolyte balance	Excretion Hydration Nutrition	Diabetes insipidus Hyponatremia/hypernatremia Hypokalemia/hyperkalemia Hypocalcemia/hypercalcemia
Hemostasis	Bleeding Coagulation	Pulmonary emboli Disseminated intravascular coagulation Thrombocytopenia
Immunity	Hypersensitivity Infection Inflammation	Autoimmune disorders HIV infection and AIDS Pneumonia Septic shock
Infection	Energy balance Hydration Infection control Nutrition Tissue integrity	Bacterial abscess Common cold Colitis Healthcare-associated infections Lower/upper respiratory infections Sepsis
Inflammation and oxidative stress	Coagulation Infection Tissue integrity	Asthma Inflammatory bowel disease Rheumatoid arthritis
Intracranial regulation	Cerebral autoregulation Fluid and electrolyte balance Trauma Ventilation	Cerebrovascular accident Hydrocephalus Seizure disorders Traumatic brain injury
Metabolism	Energy balance Hormonal regulation	Diabetes mellitus Metabolic syndrome Hypothyroidism Obesity
Mobility	Ambulation Balance	Spinal cord injury Stroke
Mood and affect	Coping Culture Emotion Social support Stress	Anxiety Depression Postpartum depression
Nutrition and digestion	Diet Malabsorption Fluid balance	Iron deficiency anemia Atherosclerosis Obesity Ulcers GI bleeding
Oxygenation	Hypoxia Ischemia Respiration Ventilation	Asthma Anemia Carbon monoxide poisoning Heart failure Acute respiratory distress syndrome Shock
Perfusion	Ischemia Vasoconstriction	Heart failure Atherosclerosis Thromboembolic disorders
Sensory perception	Hearing Smell Taste Touch Vision	Hearing loss Glaucoma Retinopathy Vision loss
Sexuality	Culture Gender Hormonal balance Sexual orientation	Erectile dysfunction Impotence Pelvic floor dysfunction
Reproduction	Sexuality	Infertility Female genitourinary issues Male genitourinary issues Sexually transmitted infections
Stress and coping	Appraisal Coping Stressor	Homeostasis/allostasis Allostatic load Acute stress disorder Posttraumatic stress disorder

Biophysiologic Concepts	Subconcept	Examples of Diseases/Conditions Related to the Concept
Tissue integrity	Thermoregulation Sensation Wounds	Pressure injury
Thermoregulation	Fever Hypothermia Hyperthermia	Fever Hypothermia Malignant hyperthermia Burns
Trauma	Consciousness Mobility Perfusion Sensation Oxygenation	Blunt trauma Penetrating trauma Burns

hypertension, one of the options is using a medication that decreases the strength with which the heart contracts. Calcium channel blockers stop the movement of calcium into cardiac tissue and thereby lessen the contractile force of the heart, lowering blood pressure.

Understanding the conceptual basis of pathogenesis then aids in understanding pharmacologic actions and nursing interventions. Turning a patient to help prevent pressure injuries is based on principles of blood flow and tissue ischemia. Developing that understanding provides the rationale for turning a patient on a schedule and highlights the importance of performing that basic nursing action. Two brief examples are provided to further demonstrate the importance of these biophysical concepts.

Example 1: Myocardial Ischemia and Infarction. Tissue integrity is a major concept explored in this text. A decrease in blood flow to tissue means that there is a decrease in the amount of oxygen and glucose to tissue. The decrease in oxygen can then result in death, or infarction, of the tissue. Decreases in glucose deprive cells of a major energy source and can disrupt cellular regulation. This decrease in oxygen and glucose is called **ischemia**. A related term is *hypoxia*, which refers to a lack of oxygen to tissue. This can occur from disruptions of the respiratory system.

The oxygen levels in the blood may stimulate constriction of blood vessels, decreasing the flow of blood. Such narrowing of blood vessels is seen in conditions of atherosclerosis, a condition in which the presence of lipids plays a major role. The immune system also plays a role in how quickly lipids accumulate and thus reduce the diameter of blood vessels.

Other illness states such as diabetes, an alteration in hormonal release with effects on metabolism, can influence the relative thickness or viscosity of blood, further slowing circulation. Therefore, pathophysiology is best viewed as a series of interrelated concepts that help to explain how a disease state affects health. In this situation, inflammation, oxygenation, perfusion, and metabolism are all involved in the pathogenesis of myocardial infarction in a patient with diabetes. See **Figure 1.1** for a diagram of the relationships between these concepts.

Example 2: Asthma. Oxygenation is the main concept associated with asthma. Asthma is a condition of reactive airway constriction. In other words, parts of the respiratory tract are sensitive to the presence of allergens. In



Figure 1.1 Concepts related to the pathogenesis of myocardial infarction in an individual with diabetes.

the presence of an environmental allergen, such as cat hair, parts of the respiratory tract constrict, restricting the flow of air into the lung. The reduction in air flow leads to decreases in the concentration of oxygen in the bloodstream. The allergen stimulates the immune system, which releases inflammatory mediators. The resulting inflammation contributes to the reduction of airflow. Obesity, an alteration of metabolism, is a state of chronic inflammation that can worsen asthma. Obesity also can make it harder for an individual to breathe properly, owing to pressure on the lungs and the person's relative lack of fitness. There are nervous pathways that influence the constriction and dilation of the respiratory system. In this example, oxygenation reflects the concentration of oxygen but is under the influence of other concepts such as inflammation and immunity, along with other concepts such as metabolism (obesity) that can influence the degree of inflammation. See Figure 1.2 for a diagram of the relationships between these concepts.

Case Studies

Case studies are used throughout this book/eText to help the reader apply the chapter content to clinical situations.



Figure 1.2 Concepts related to an asthma attack.

Each case study focuses on one patient, who is followed throughout the chapter. Most chapters have two or three case studies. The following case study will be addressed throughout this chapter to introduce the reader to the format of the case studies used in the book.

Frank Smith: Introduction

Frank Smith, age 55, presents at the clinic with a chief complaint of headache with blurred vision over the past 3 hours. He describes his headache as bitemporal and throbbing. Lying down makes



it worse. Mr. Smith's medical history includes hypertension, for which he was prescribed two medications. He states that he ran out of his medication 4 days ago and has not been able to afford the prescription. His blood pressure is 190/110, and he has a pulse of 68 with a strong character.

- 1. What characteristics of Mr. Smith's chief complaint support the idea that alterations in one system can affect the function of others?
- 2. What major biophysiologic concepts should the nurse focus on during the assessment of Mr. Smith?

Knowledge of pathophysiology is important for healthcare providers, including nurses, physicians, pharmacists, dieticians, and physical and occupational therapists. It provides a foundation for other courses, such as pharmacology and nutrition, as well as for clinical practice. Pathophysiology is the basis for understanding the current health status of patients and for early detection and appropriate intervention in response to changes in the clinical course. Pathophysiology is also used in teaching patients about their conditions and about health promotion, risk reduction, and prevention of complications. One of the purposes of this chapter is to introduce the concepts of health and illness along with terminology used in describing disease progression along with the leading causes of morbidity and mortality. An additional concern that will emerge in later chapters is the concept of injury. **Injury** is damage caused to the body by an external force.

Check Your Progress: Section 1.1

- 1. How does the conceptual basis of pathophysiology help in the process of assessment and diagnosis?
- 2. What is the difference between pathophysiology and pathology?
- 3. How do nurses apply pathophysiology in daily practice?

1.2 Overview of Health and Illness Characteristics of Health and Illness

Generally, the use of the word **health** refers to an absence of disease or functional changes that can result in disease. Health and illness are then terms best viewed as points along a continuum (**Figure 1.3**). Throughout life, the individual can be situated at different points along the continuum, moving back and forth between wellness and illness.

The terms *illness, disease,* and *condition* are often used almost interchangeably. Even in healthcare and nursing settings, the terms may be used as synonyms. However, there are some distinct differences to consider. The term **disease** can refer to a situation that is impairing functional ability in some way. For example, **hypertension** (a sustained elevation in blood pressure) is a disease with clear diagnostic criteria that can lead to a number of symptoms and complications.

The word **illness** is often used as a synonym for disease, but in healthcare, it is used to describe the individual experience that a person has with a disease. How each person responds to disease is different, and the subjective interpretation of the disease is influenced by the person's prior beliefs, knowledge, cultural factors, and overall state of health (**Figure 1.4**). For example, a healthy individual who catches a cold may feel miserable for a few days, but the disease will run its course, life will go back to normal, and the individual would not describe herself as "ill." On the other hand, if an individual with asthma catches a cold, it can exacerbate the asthma, may change the medication regimen, and could even require hospitalization. So, a patient with asthma who has a cold may feel quite ill.

If hypertension and the common cold are diseases that can result in illness, a different term is needed for the functional changes that can occur as a result the disease. In healthcare, the term **disorder** is used to describe a disruption of physiologic or psychologic function. As an example,



Figure 1.3 An illness–wellness continuum.

several genetic variations can lead to disruptions of classes of immune cells. These disruptions can result in what is referred to as an immunoproliferative disorder. In other words, the continuing production or growth of certain cell types can lead to a loss of other cells or the release of immature cells. Leukemia is an example of such a disorder or disruption of normal cellular regulation.

The term **syndrome** usually refers to a group of signs and symptoms that emerge from a disease state. An example is acute coronary syndrome, which manifests as angina accompanied by changes in the electrophysiology of the heart resulting from a decrease in blood flow to the heart. This decrease in blood flow reduces the amount of oxygen that the heart receives, resulting in ischemia. With acute coronary syndrome, there are several potential causes, and different electrocardiogram abnormalities can be found.¹ Thus, a syndrome can have varying etiologic factors and some variation in diagnostic findings. The commonalities are in the cluster of signs and symptoms along with a shared underlying pathogenic mechanism.

Risk Factors

A **risk factor** is anything that puts a person at a greater risk for developing a particular disease. Risk factors emerge from a number of sources. One is the genetic blueprint provided to each of us at birth, and another is lifestyle factors. Lifestyle factors reflect decisions about diet, exercise, smoking and other variables that influence health. Another phrase that may be heard in healthcare courses is *social determinants of health*. Social determinants of health are factors related to where one lives, educational level, income, availability of fresh food, public transportation, and a number of other considerations that can affect health. These factors are often bound within society and are not as readily influenced as lifestyle risk factors.

Risk factors are traditionally classified as modifiable or nonmodifiable. A **modifiable risk factor** is one that the individual can change, such as diet or smoking. A **nonmodifiable risk factor** is one that cannot be altered, such as age, race, and genetic characteristics. The relationship between risk factors and disease is discussed in Section 1.3.



Figure 1.4 A. Connor Whelan is an infant. He has Down syndrome and a congenital heart defect that will need to be corrected when he is 12 months old. **B.** Yvonne Johnson is a 35-year-old woman experiencing joint swelling, pain, and fatigue. The pain and fatigue are beginning to affect her ability to work. Her family physician has not been able to identify a cause. **C.** Jacob Reinecker is a 22-year-old college student who came to the emergency department after experiencing a sudden, stabbing pain in his chest with resulting shortness of breath. As you read the rest of this chapter, think about these questions: (1) Are these patients healthy or ill? (2) Are their conditions acute or chronic? (3) What risks factors does each patient have that might shed some light on the patient's conditions?